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PROCEEDINGS

MORNING SESSION

Friday, July 24, 1936
13:00 A, M,

MR. GRAHAM: (Gentlemen of the Bench and Bar, the time has
arrived for calling our annual convention to order. The Commission-
ers were in doubt as to what kind of program would ereate more in-
terest in the annual meeting, that is, whether to have some local
talent discuss local matters, or have an outside spezker. We had 2z
combination last year, This year we have tried to get subjects with
which lawyers have to deal every day, with the hope that you might
get a keener interest in the meeting of the Bar.

The first thing in order will be the report of our Secretary, Mr.
Griffin.

MR. GRIFFIN. Following the meeting of the Bar at Hailey July
11, 1935, and the election thereat of A. L. Morgan ag Commissioner

for the Northern Division, the Beard met and directed an investigation

of alleged illegal practice of law by bond companies, particularly
Murphy-Favre Co. of Spokane. Such investipetion resulted in the
filing of contempt charges in the Supreme Court, which, after hearing,
adjudged sueh company guilty and imposed a fine of $500.00. The
company had entered into an agresment with the County Commission-
ers of Shoshone County to act as fiscal agent in refunding honds, and
had agreed to obtain and employ, in connection with the services it
was to render, expert legal services of some bond attorney, Justice
Givens, with whom concurred the other Justices, held, in part:

“The following propositions of law * * * lead to the inevit-
able conclugion that Murphy-Favre & Co., a corporation, was
illegally practicing law. First, being a corporation, it is con-
ceded that it cannot itself practice law, and it may not do indi-
rectly what it cannot do directly. While herein there wasz but
a single transaction, similar agreements providing for a con-
tinuous furnishing of legal services have been prohibited. And
one instance of practicing law is as much practicing law as many,

“Murphy-Favre & Co. therefore by this contract, in effect
obligated itself to practice law illegally, and in its admitted per-
formance thereof * * * did work amounting to the illegal prae-
tice of law and therefore is in contempt of this Court, and so
adjudged.”

The decision is a further step taken by the Board with respect to
illegal practice, two previous decisions having been theretofore secured,
Le., In Re Eastern Idaho Loan and Trust Co., 49 Idzho, 280, and In
Re Brainard, 55 Idaho, 153. Another case of alleged illegal practice
has been filed with the Court and is now pending, and investigations
of other instances, brought to the attention of the Board, are being
investigated.

As usual, numerous informal complaints against attorneys have
been satisfactorily explained to, and adjusted with, ctients. In addition,
three attorneys have been suspended by the Court, after proceedings
by the Board, for practicing without payment of annual license fees.
Application of one for reinstatement has been denied, and of one
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action; four dismissed ag stating n

diseiplinary Proceedings have heen ordered and are Pending,

Investigations relative to illeg,

al practice of law have been con.
dueted in Caribou, Bannock, Lat

ah, Clearwater, Nex Perce, Idaho,
Lewis and Twin Falls Counties. A letter explaining the decisions and

definition of practice of law wag prepared and, through co-operation
of the Idaho State Bankers Association

. Aftgr considerable discussj
Wwas proposed to the Supreme Co

substance directing the Board t
associations, with boundaries de
of the Bar within Szch bounda:
mitting such localg g large mea
ant thereto the following have h

on a rule
urt, and by it adopted a8 Rule 49, in
0 OTganize the entire State into loea]
terminable by the Board, all members
ries being memhers thereof, and per-
sure of loeal self government. Pursu-
8en organized:

Shoshone County Bay Association (First Judicia) District)
Clearwater Bar Asgociation (Second and Tenth Districts)

Third Judicial District Bar Association

Fifth Distriet Bar Association
Seventh Judicial District Bar Association
Eighth Judicia) District Bar Association
Ninth Jndicia] Distriet Bar Association
Eleventh Judicial District Bar Association

, and committees from each are
, In an endeavor to adopt uniform by-laws, which the
Board hopes to have adopted, and enforceable, as Ruleg of the Snpreme

which 2 aré pending, and of which 1 wag admitted by the Court on
review, Twenty-eight were recommended by the Board, and with the
1 ahove, make 29 admitted or entitled to admigzion,
There were g applicants for admission by Certificate, 4 of whom
. and 2 recommended and admitted,
ying revision of Raules of Admissjon, and
will shortly recommend changes to the Supreme Gourt.
The memhers of the Board have given 2g days {exclusive of time
in travelling, and in their own offices) to the nine formal Board meet-
ings held sinee the last anpuaj meeting of the Bar,

; and in two
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In other words,
ili he Board.
1 expense by t
e LICENSED ATTORNEYS I
935 report of the Secretary showed a detﬁzazza(; fagibin
ki Jicenged, from 1981 to 1336, of 34. For
aitorneys 5

of 10 is noted.‘

1836 1936
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T. K. Hackman, 'I(‘)wnfxi Falls

. Hannah, Orofino
e Samdles Tdabo Falls
Samuel Q. Tannahill, Lewiston
Warren Truitt, Mosco_w
Frank T. Wyman, .Bmse
J, H, Richards, Boizse
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MR. GRAHAM: In the absence of any cbjection the report will
be received and placed on file,

MR. A. L. MORGAN: I want to ask a question with respect to
out of state members of the Bar,

MR. CRIFFIN: Those are members who have at one time been
admitted and have removed and are still paying their annual license.

MR. GRAHAM: There is an election in the Western Division this
year. I will appoint as canvassing committee: Paul Thoman, Twin
Falls, Clarence Thomas of Burley and McKeen F. Morrow of Boise.

The next thing on the program is a report of the prosecuting at-
torneys’ section. We have heretofore had the judicial section, and we
have ereated also the prosecuting attorneys’ section so that they may
meset the day before the convention and thresh out their difficulties
and render such recommendations or report to this body as they see
fit. I will now ask the chairman of the prosecuting attorneys’ section
if he is ready to report.

MR. BABCOCK: The zection of the prosecuting attorneys met
yesterday afternoon, and we had a remarkably better attendance than
we had a year ago. Prior to this meeting I wrote the prosecuting at-
torneys of every county in the state and asked them to determine any
changes or any recommendationg they would like to make in regard
to eriminal procedure and statutes in this state. Yesterday we had
quite a few suggestions and we have decided to appoint z committee
to investigate and draw up chenges in the criminal statutes and meet
in Boise at the time the Legislature meets and try to get through these
changes. One change is that we establish & state police system for the
assistance of the prosecuting attorneys; slso some changes in regard
to insanity as a defense in a criminal action, and also some changes
in regard to filing several counts in an information similar to the
{California practice. There were also suggestions to reduce some of the
indictable misdemeanors to misdemeanors.

The resolution relating to the defense of insanity follows the Cali-
fornia statute. We had some different ideas on what we should try to
accomplish, hut at this time we thought maybe we were a little bit
radical, so we followed the California statute as follows:

“19-162. KINDS OF PLEAS.—There are five kinds of pleas to an
indictment. A plea of:

1. Guilty.

2. Not guilty.

3. A former judgment of conviction or aequittal of the offense
charged, which may be pleaded either with or without the plea of not
guilty.

4. Once in jecpardy.

5. Not guilty by reason of insanity.

A defendant who does not plead guilty may enter one or more of
the other pleas. A defendant who does not plead guilty by reason of
insanity shall be conclusively presumed to have been sane at the time
of the commission of the offense charged, provided that the court may
for good cauge shown allow a change of plea at any time before the
commencement of the trial, A defendant who pleads not guilty by rea-
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son of insanity, without alse pleading not guilty, thereby admits the
commission of the offense charged.”

The other one also follows the California statute:

“See, 19-1313. TWO OR MORE OFFENSES IN ONE INDICT-
MENT. An indictment, information, or complaint may charge two
or more different offenses connected together in their commigsion, or
different statements of the same offense or two or more different of-
fenses of the same class of crimes or offenses, under separate counts,
and if two or more indictments or informations are filed in such cases
the court may order them to be consolidated, The prosecution is not
required to elect between the different offenses or counts set forth in
the indictment or information, but the defendant may be convicted of
any number of offenses charged, and each offense upon which the de-
fendant is convicted must be stated in the verdict; provided, that the
court in the interest of justice and for good cause shown, may, in its
discretion, order that the different offenses or counts set forth in the
indictment or information be tried separately, or divided into two or
more groups and each of said groups tried separately. A verdict of
acquittal of one or more counts shall be deemed or held to be on ae-
quittal of any other count. (Section 954, Penal Code of California,
1931.)"”

We met together with the judicial section and adopted a resolution
appointing a committee for emacting recommendations by Judge
Koelsch which were proposed by him in the judicial section,

MR. GRAHAM: Consideration of the resolution might be deferred
until such time as we hear the discussion of Judge Barclay.

I am glad to see so many prosecutors here, and if you don’t get
what your are entitled to just blame yourselves, because there are 44
of you and if you come in here and strike you can get anything you
want because you have the votes to do it.

Custom has established the practice that the President make some
remarks at this annual meeting. To follow that precedent, I have a
few suggestions to offer:

Gentlemen of the Bench and Bar, for some time before and since
1 was elected a3 Commisgioner of the Bar, I have realized that rela-
tively few Iawyers of this state knew about the work and purposes
of the Bar organization, and that relatively few come to the annual
meetings of the State Bar, Since many lawyers would not or could
not come to our annusl meetings, it seemed to me that the thing to do
was, and is, to take the Bar activities out te its membership, explain
its work to them, and help them to see the real need for a vigorous,
live state organization, and to discuss with them the ways and means
of giving to the average lawyer a part and place in the work, the poli-
cies and the control of the State Bar.

With that object in view, the Bar Commissioners have definite plans
and are now trying to carry these plans into execution to make mem-
bership in this State Bar useful and even indispensable to the average
lawyer in his profession. The plan is to form a local Bar Association
in each and all of the Judicial Districts in the State, each District to
be an entity in and of itself, requiring all members of the Bar in that
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Distriet to be members of the local District Agsociation, leaving to
the Local Distriet Association as much home rule and self-govern-
ment as possible, subject, however, to such supervisory powers by the
State Bar Commission and the Supreme Court ag may be necessary
to make an efficient working organization. The Bar Commissioners are
now trying to work out such a plan with the loeals and hope to have
the same in operation shortly. The purpose of this is to work out a
plan of co-operation and co-ordination between the l.ocals and the
Stete Bar so that each member of the Bar in thiz State will fully
realize that he is a part and parcel of a live State organization.

There are at present about 550 lawyers in the State and with a
license fee of $5.00 per, we can raise only about $2750.00 per year. Out
of this we bave to pay a secretary, pay the travelling expenses of the
Commissioners, conduct two Bar examinations a year, institute and
prosecute such complaints ag the Commissioners may find necessary,
paying all expenses connected tberewith, printing our anmmal pro-
ceedings and such other incidental expenses as may arise. With our
funds so- limited, the scope of work of the State Bar Commission must,
of necessity, he Iimited. )

There are two main objects to be attained by the State Bar Com-
mission to justify its existence, which are:

(a) Te put an everlasting stop to the members of the Bar indulg-
ing in unprofessional conduct, thereby bringing themselves into dis-
repute and lowering the standing of the legnl profession in the com-
munity, the State and Nation, There was a time some thirty for
forty years ago when the lawyers were the leaders in the community,
and their counsel and advice were sought on social, civic, religions,
political and economic matters, but such is not the case at the present
time, With a full realization of these facts, it is wp to us as members
of the legal prefession in Idaho to restore the legal profession to its
once enviable position in the community.

(b} To prevent members of the laity from performing dutfes and -

rendering service to the public rightfully belonging to the legal pro-
fession. Thousands upon thousands of dollars in fees are being lost
annually which rightfully belong to the profession. Thig practice
results in a great economic loss to the puhlic and the profession.

The Judicial branch of our government is a separate and distinct
branch of our government which should be operated, manned and
controlled by the lawyers of this state, The method of procedure in
all its phases, both civil and criminal, should be defined by rules of
the Supreme Court rather than by legislative enactment, The Supreme
Court should constitute the administrative and governing body or
cabinet of this branch of the government, The Bar Commission should
be, and is, a commission under the control and supervision of the
Supreme 1Court, locking after the admission of new members to the
ranks and investigating and prosecuting violations of rules of the
Supreme Court.

The respensibility for the administration of justice falls squarely
on the shoulders of the administrative officers of this branch of our
government, that is, the Justices of the Supreme Court, That respon-
sibility should be gladly asgumed hy that Court, If there are any laws,
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rules or regulations on the Statutes of thig State, which hinder or
delay the speedy administration of justice, then they should be re-
pealed, if legislative enactments, and the Court adopt a complete set
of rules governing practice and procedure in all courts that will speed
up the adminstration of justice, In other words, I want the Supreme
Court to exercise those Iatent constitutional rule-making powers which
it possesses and make its own rules, rather than have the legisiative
branch of the government tinker with something they know nothing
about, If this practice were adopted, I feel that a lot of eriticism now
directed againgt the lawyers and courts for seemingly unnecessary
delays, particularly in eriminal cases, could be easily overcome,

The Constitution is the fortress of our freedom. It is our only
refuge against the storms of oppression. It is a written, definite ex-
pression of the fundamental principles of human liberty and justice
that never have changed and never can change; and it is a solemn
compact between the founders of our Nation, and the present genera-
tion, and the generations that are to come that these principles of
liberty and justice shall be preserved unto us and to those who come
after us, '

But there are politicians today who would, either by unlimited exten-
sion of the Doctrine of Implied Powers or by indirect amendment of
the Conatitution, or by discarding it entirely, revert to a government
of men instead of & government of laws, and regwlate and control
the minutest details of our every-day lives and business until cur
people are deprived of every vestige of liberty and our citizens of
their very manheod.

As conditions change it may be, ard it has been, necessary to
change and amend the Constitution, so far as it applies to the me-
chanies of government. Ample provision iz made for amendment in
this respect, and it has been so amended on many occasions, but these
changes should be made only when the great majority of the people,
who are the government, after due deliberation consent to the changes,
and not at the whims of any politician, or group of politicians, or any
political party.

And these changes should be in matters purely governmenta] only,
and not to deprive the citizens of their liberties, For the fundamental
principles of human liberty ean never change and cannot be amended.
And the :Constitution stands as a protection to these principleg of lib-
erty and justice, and says to any ambitious politician or any ambitious
congress, or any ambitious government, .

“Beyond this point you shall not go,”

It is the only restraint upon the thoughtless future generations
from the tempting excess of political power, If this restraint is
removed, the American Democracy, with its prineiples of liberty and
justice, will surely perish.

The first duty imposed upon the lawyer by the Statutes of the
State of Idaho and the first sworn obligation of his oath is to support
the Constitution of the United States. In times of National Emer-
gency, when politicians find their power limited and their ambitions
thwarted by a written Constitution, snd the Constitution is under
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attack, the Courts and the lawyers are its natural guardians and its
strongest defense.

The Constitution was written by lawyers, and the lawyers and
judges have been its sturdy wall of defense, whgnever it has been
attacked; and the various courts and Bar Asscciations of ocur f:quntry
must rally to its defense today and assume their natural position as
defenders and guardians of the Constitution and protectors of the
liberties which it guarantees,

RECOMMENDATIONS

1 recommend to the Bar Commissioners:

Tirst: That ali outside lawyers desiring to come to Ydaho to prac-
tice law be required to establish a bona fide residence in the State for
six months bejore they are eligible for admission, and tl:lat they b.e
- required to take the examination the same as Pther remde.nt appli-
cants, and that the present practice of admitting non-resident ap-
plicants by certificate be discontinued, ‘

Second: That the Bar Gommissioners tighten up on the grading
of applieants, thereby raising the standard of applicants: If, on the
other hand, applicants for admission gain the impression that all
graduates of the College of Law are admitted, then our College of
Law will be flooded with students and the profession over-crowded
with lawyers. The profession must be protected.

ME. GRAHAM: In the absence of Mr. Oversmith, who is ill, and
Mr. Black, who is unable to be here, I want to appoint this temporary
resolutions committee: Carey Nixon, Mr, Boughton and Judge Var-
ian,

The next suzbject has been prepared by one of our District Judges
on the question of Defense of Insanity in Idaho Criminal Cases, Adam
P. Barclay. Judge Barclay.

JUDGE BARCLAY: Mr. Chairman, and gentlemen of the conm-

vention. What I have to say is on the subjeet of insanity as a defense
in eriminal cases generally. Of course, it is tied into Idaho' ]aw. in !ot_s
of phases and some of it hag not yet reached us. The .subgect itself is
not ene which is in prominence with the Bar or public gemerally. It
only comes into notice when a tragedy has occurred some place_, a?d
those interested in taking care of what has happened, the d.istl:lct
judge, prosecuiing attorney and defense couns_el, have _to g0 tcf digging
in the books, because they have not been required to dig into 1t‘ before.
So I covered the subject pretty generally, and perhaps will have
something to say about the proposed recommendation on the part of
the prosecutors here, which, of course, 1 didn't know about when I
prepared this article. . ) .
" 7The substantive rules of criminal law governing insanity are
ambiguous and confused, The human mind is as little u]:}derstood as
the mystery of life or any other phenemena or nature whu'._h man has
not yet been able to analyze or understand. It. neC?SSﬂH!}T follows
that there is a great confusion among the authorities in their attempt
4o define and apply legal tests of mental responsibility:
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There is an extreme divergence of opinion as to what is the legal
conception of insanity, and it is all based on ancient precedents.
English and American courts still cite Biackstone, who in turn cites
Lord Hale who lived sometime in the 1600's, when judges and priests
associated inBanity with demons, witch-craft, sorcery and the like,
and sought to stamp it out by torture and the stake. As a sample of
such trend of thought, Lord Hale had this to say concerning some
phases of dementis, which to him would have perhaps explained what
the modern psychiatrists and some courts denominate “irresistable
impulse,” “manic depressive,” “uncontrotlable mania,” and the like:

“The moon,” said Hale, “hath a preat influence on all diseases
of the brain, especially in this kind of dementia: such persons,
commonly in the full and change of the moon, especially about
the equinoxes and summer solstice, are usually at the height
of their distemper, . .. But such persons as have their lucid in-
tervals (which ordinarily happens between the full and change
of the moon} in such intervals have usually at least a competent
use of reasom, .. .”

In the year 1800 Lord PErskine, as counsel for defense, in his
argument tried to lay down a universal test of responsibility in cases
where the defendant suffered from mental disease. Delusion, he said,
in cases where there is no frenzy or raving madness, is the true
character of insanity. This test was more or less followed by the
English and American courts until the year 1843, at which time the
House of Lords requested the opinion of all of the judges of England
as to what was the proper test of mental responsibility, the result of
which is known as “The Opinien of the Judges,” in which was laid
down the rule that knmowledge of right and wrong was the test to be
applied. About the same time two early American state courts,
Massachusetts and Pennsylvania, attempted to lay down the same
rile, but in addition thereto attempted to deal with “irresistable
impulse,” “homicidal mania,” ete. Later, various courts in both
countries have devoted their talents to expounding what they con-
ceive the correct rules on the subject, and it remains today almost
as confused as ever. In some states the legislatures have tried to
establish g statutory test. FErskine's theory has been abandoned.
Thousands of opinions have been written, trying to lay down correct
rules as legal tests of responsibility, with the resuolt that the subject
yet remains a most fertile field of debate.

One author says, “No matter what charge a trial judge may give
upon the legal test of insanity, it is a poor lawyer who cannot find
some flaw in it upon which to argue for reversal, and more cases in
which insanity is an issue are reversed for an erreneous wording of the
test, or for refusal to grant correct instructions, or the giving of
erroneous instructions regarding the test of insanity, than for any
other reason.”

Some of the confusion which arose from the earlier courts trying
to attach the irresistable impulse theory onto the “right or wrong”
test has been in later years partly cleared up by the courts rejecting
the irresistable impulse idea entirely, The rule which is now followed
in the majority of the states, that knowledge of right and wrong in
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regard to the particular act charged is the only test of responsibility,
rejects the irresistahle impulse test, by implication, and the most of
the states have rejected it expressly, some for one reason, some for
another. Some courts content themselves by simply saying, “The
frresistahle impulse thesry has mever been adopted as the law in this
state,” which ia perhaps the most clear and cogent reason which eould
be given and the least liable to dispute, criticism or debate.

A summary of the reasons some of the courts have laid down for
rejectimg the irresistable impulse test, ag near as I can determine, are:

(1) The belief that no such disorder is in fact possible;

(2) If it does exist it is too difficult to prove to be allowed as &
defense to crime;

(2) It is a defense too dangerous to society.

So, it would seem that the irresistable impulse theory is on its
way out, to join Lord Erskine's test of delusion. Peace be to its ashes,
1t was certainly dangerous to society.

When we come to the burden of proof it seems that there are two
distinct views existing in the American courts: (1) The prosecution
must prove beyond a reasonable doubt that the defendant, at the time
of the commission of the offense, was sufficiently sane to be held
criminally responsihle; (2) The defense of insanity is an affirmative
defense raised by the defendant himself, and he must prove his lack
of mental responsihility at the time of the offense,

Under the second rule there are three variations, in the different
jurisdietions, as to the quentum of evidence required. They are: (a)
Beyond a reasonable doubt; (b} To the satisfaction of the jury; (c) By
& preponderance of the evidence. . Twenty-two states have this second
rule by applying one of the above named variations. Twelve states
say the defendent must prove his insanity by a preponderance of the
evidence. Other states of the twenty-two adopt the same rule by
using different or additional language, guch as “to the satisfaction
of the jury,” “clearly proved to the reasonable satisfaction of the
jury,” and such like expressions. In Oregon a statute requires the
accused to establish his irresponsibility beyond a reasonable doubt.

Jdaho is one of six states which has abandoned the rule requiring
the accused to conmvince the jury of his defense of insanity, and
adopted the rule that the burden shifts to the prosecution when a
doubt arises in the trial as to mental responsibility of the accused at
the time of the commission of the offense charged. Beginning with
People v. Walter (1871) 1 Idaho 386, and following down to and in-
cluding State v. Larkin (1897) b Idaho 200, our Supreme Court held
that insanity iz an affirmative defense and musp be proved by the
defendant by a preponderance of the evidence, In State v, Shuff (1903)
9 TIdaho 115, without expressly overruling the previous cases, the court
adopted a different and opposite rule, and since that time has adhered
to it,—that the defendant has the burden in the first instance of
raising a reasonahle doubt as to his sanity, but when such reasonable

douht is raised the burden shifts to the prosecution to prove mental
responaibility, Our Supreme Court has not said expressly what quan-
tum of evidence is necessary when a reasonable doubt has been ratsed
and the burden shifted, to meet and overcome the doubt so raised, but

IDAHO STATE BAR PROCEEDINGS ‘13

it is to be inferred that nothing less than beyond a reasonable doubt
would be sufficient. Qur state in this regard seems to follow the
minority rule, and the modern text writers seem to agree that the
rule of requiring the defendant to maintain the burden iz being
adopted by an increasing number of courts.

) Some jurisdictions recognize mental disorder as ground for redue-
ing punishment. This rule is that the insanity of the accused may be
used for the purpose of reducing his crime from murder in the first
degree (if it be a homicide charge) to murder in the second degree.
-In other words, where an aceused is somewhat disordered mentally,
but not to suech a degree as to relieve him from responsibility for
crime, the punishment should be reduced. If he is so incapable, he
cannot be convicted of murder in the first degree but only for the

.second degree, This rule has been adopted in eight states and rejected
in seven.

. Our Suprgme Court seems to have settled this question in Idaho,
in State v. Wetter, 11 Idaho 433, by approving an instruction which
said in part: “If the defendant at the time of the killing was insane,
as above defined, he would not be guilty of either murder in the first

degree, or murder in the gecond degree, or manslaughter, and should
be aequitted.”

The methods or ways and the time in which the question of in-
sanity may be raised are different in each jurigdiction, according to
the various state statutes. It is raised in this state, under our statute,
umiler the plea of “not guilty.” No other or special plea is necessary.
This statute was enacted in territorial days, in 1864, and it seems
never to have been amended in this regard, That this puts society
to a disadvantage can be seen at once. The time and place of the
appearance of the question in the case is within the control of the
defendant, and he may, if he choose, spring it in his defense and
produce an array of psychiatrisis, other expert and non-expert testi-
mony, together with family records, as to none of which tbe prosecu-
tion has been apprised and may be in no position to meet, Under our
procedure and practice the trial then assumes a dual purpose, with
the State being in the position of being required to prove everything .
beyond a reasonable doubt. The State must first prove tbe crime
charged; second, if the burden has shifted by the raising of the ques-
tion of sanity of the defendant, it must prove the sanity of the accused,
even under the handicap above stated.

There is a vast distinction between the trial of a eriminal case and
an investigation. or inquisition to determine sanity or insanity. In
f?.ct, other than our statutes make it so (and I refer to I C. A., sec-
tions 19-1616 and 19-2205), I have never understood that an inquiry
as to sanity is a trial at all Qur proceedings, says the Supreme
Court in Ré¢ Hinkle, 33 Tdaho 605, for ecommitment of insane under
whatever form inganity may arise, are paterpal in character, and are
not in any sense penal.

By the way, may I discuss what was submitted by the prosecutors {

MR, GRAHAM: Go ghead, The sky i3 the limit,
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MR. BARCLAY: Logically, and in the last analysis, an inquiry
into the sanity of an individual is mot a penal matter and is not 2
trial, and to my mind it is extremely illogieal to prosecute a man
in the guise of a legal action for a thing that he_ cou_ld not possibly
be guilty of if he is insane. An inquiry to determine insanity at any
point of any proceeding should be separate, totally a’nd c'ompletely
apart from the inguiry as to the crime. Now, the Calﬁot_'ma sta.f.ute
that the boys have recommended here is not in accord with my idea
of this matter at all. To me it was startling, A man _accused of the
crime there has plead not guilty by reason of insanity; they first
try him for the crime, and in that the Legislature has told the Court
that he is conclusively presumed to be sane. Now, to me that was an
innovation; I don’t understand that any Legislature has any nght to
tell the Supreme Court or any court what is to bl.? conclusive evn‘ience.
They have tried it many times, but I have the idea that tbat is not
good law and in the trial of a criminal case the burden has a.lwa_ys
been to establish or prove beyond a reasonable doubt, _For the Legis-
lature to assert that when a man is tried he is conclusively presumed
to be sane is startling to me, and I wondered how ‘Ehe Sup1.-eme Court
wag going to get by. That was the law, but they said that is not vg'hat
the Legislature meant, and they interpret it as some do the Bible,
that only for the purpose of the trial was he conclusively presumed
to be sane. That is not true and it never can be read t}}at way aecf)rd-
ing to the most modern authorities and men who, I think, have given
the most thought to this subject and know best what to do. _Why do
the prosecutors insist on progecuting a man under. the guise of &
criminal statute if he is insane and could not commit a crm}e? b.To,
1 think the method should be in some other way that T will point
out later.

The rules of evidence in a criminal trial are well known. In cases
where insanity is involved there seems to be a compl‘ete relaxation
of a1l rules of evidence, if knowledge of the matter testified about can
be brought home to the subject; hearsay, true or fal'se, non-expert
testimony, conclusions, and anything else, all go in, if t%ley can be
shown to have a possible bearing on the conduct or actions of the
person under inquiry. Take all these matters introducec.l ul:lder the
guise of evidence and add to them the testimony of p'sychmtrxsts pro-
duced by the defendant—who find it necessary 1".0 de%nrer a lecture t}t];o
explain their conclusions (which, by the way, invariably is 1_-,hat e
defendant is insane)—and no average jury on earth can %rnve at a
verdict which would do fjustice to society except by aceident. The
language used is not that of the average juror, cannot be underst_uod
by the average man on the street nor anywhere else, and ?ret the jury
is expected and required to say whether a doubt as ‘to sanity has beeg
raised, and, if so, whether the state has overcome it by proof beyo‘n
a reasonable doubt. Here are some of the words, phrases and weird
langiage at one time used in a murder tria:l by one of theﬁe gentle-
men, which came under my observation: Ag-ltate_sd melancl}oha; Ch‘{‘o;]l;
jcally temperamental; depressive insanity; mamc'depresswe, stra!g ;

and mixed (eight different types); war c:f emotions; .psychosthe‘ma,
Mendelian law; law for Obries; ammesiaj hypomania; the Hixon
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theory; going through a stage of psychosis; and so on. Try these on
yourselves and see if you would want to be responsible for any con
clusion you might reach involving the life of 2 human being. This
is not a ease of Justice being blind, she has put a night cap over her
mask, retired and left the result to the Gods of Chance, beeause juries
are as other man,—they cannot reason if they do not understand,

I have been zble only to hit some of the high spots of the subject
assigned to me. That our method of handling the question is archaie,
out-moded and wrong, is apparent to anyone who has ¢ome in contact
with . Our statutes have not been changed since early territorial
days, which was only a few years after Lord Erskine's theory of de-
lusion wag¢ abandoned, and it was only a few years farther back when
some people believed in the lunar theory of Lord Hale.

I am perguaded that trial for erime and inquiry as to sanity should
be two different, separate and apart proeeedings: that the defense of
insanity connected with the main trial should not be permitted.

And that is where I differ with the resolution proposed by the
prosecutors. When I read the California opinion that sugtained the
gtatute, in which, as I say, they indulged in too fine reasoning for me,
I &lso found a vigorous dissenting opinion. With all due respect to the
Supreme Court of California, who have my highest regards, I think
they are in error, and I think, just as T have read here, that the two
inquiries should be separate, distinet and apart. So, the prosecutors
will find, if they investigate, while California has tried that method,
other states have tried this other method, which is the only logical
way to protect society when a question like this comes up, or any
part of it.

"Which is the best iz of course debatable. To my mind, where the
question appears, the criminal proceedings should be held in abey-
ance until some tribunal has acted—perhaps a state board appointed
for the purpose, composed of citizens who by reason of their education
and training are qualified to hear and determine the question of in-
sanity, without reference to the crime charged, and who would be
able to understand tbe language of the psychiatrists and intelligently
reason out a conclusion from evidence submitted and observation of
the patient, Then, if the accused is found by this tribunal to have
been insane at the time of the commission of the offense charged, that
would end the proceedings as far as a trial for the offense were con-
cerned. If the accused be found sane at the time of the commission
of the crime charged and at the time of such hearing, the matter of

insanity would then be adjudicated and could not be urged again, and
would have no place in' a eriminal trial. This, I think, could be dome
within our Constitution, as the laws regarding insanity are not penal
but paternal, If it could not be so done, then change the Constjtution.

One of the most useful books I have found on the subject, Insanity
as a Defense in Criminal Law, was written in 1933 by Henry Weihofen
of the School of Law of the University of Colorado, published by the
Commonwealth Fund of New York, npon which I have drawn Iiberally
in the preparation of this address.

MR. GRAHAM: That now tbrows open the discussion. That will
take in the resolution of the prosecutors,
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MR. DONALD ANDERSON: Mr. Chairman, we discussed this
matter that Judge Barclay has just brought out, and I believe we were
fairly well apreed that that would be the best procedure. There was
one guestion raised, however; whether or not that wou]c! be constitu-
tional under our present Constitution. If it were, I _beIlev_e that the
prosecutors would all be for it, and persona%]y 1 believe, 3u§t as the
Judge has stated, that it would be constitutional, and I believe that
the prosecutors probably might reconsider the ms:tter. ]

MR. MOFFATT: I think I raised the objection. It is my under-
standing—I have not gone into the matter nearly‘ ag fully, of coTJrse,
as Judge Barclay—that the matter of defense ralses the whole issue
as to the possibility of the commission of a crime. In Utah they have
a somewhat similar set-up as the Judge has advoca’fed, e).{c_ept ‘Fhat
the trial is conducted by a jury. As I understand his posm_on, 1f a
defendant raised a question of insanity as his defense {which is a
complete defense) he then is judged by a tribunal, and I presame th'at
if found sane by that tribunal, that defense is taken away from h)'.m
and he is conclusively presumed to be sane at the time of the trial
of the main issue as to whether that crime was committed and whether
he is the man that committed it. As I understand it—I don’t presume
to he gn muthority on constitutional law—taking away i_‘rum him a de-
fense of that character by a trial before an administra.tlve bor!y would
most certainly take away a right which he has to a trial .by his fellow
men on that issue. I may be wrong, but that was the queshn.:)n_presentc?d,
and I think that is the reason why you had to have preliminary trial
hefore a jury. .

JUDGE BARCLAY: Under the theory of many a]xt-hor:‘ltles an
inguiry into sanity is not a trial and they could inqur_re into it beff)re
he committed a crime, as they could after, and the erime has nothing
to do with an inguiry except it perhaps brings it to a hea_d. Qur
Supreme Court has already said that these statutes concerl‘ung the
inquiry into sanity or insanity are not penal statutes. There is where
the eonfusion comes in, I think, ) )

ME. MOFFATT: I agree with you in that respect._ For mste_mce,
the adjudication by the Probate Court camnot be adn‘uttgd _by either
party as an indication of sanity at the time of th.e commission .of ‘the
crime, but the basis for that, as T understand it, is that the -adjudica-
tion we have under our statute now does not involve the legal test
for insanity. I cannot give the figures, but Dr Lowe of the State
Hospital in Blackfoot made a survey of his patients and present?d 2
legal test of insenity to his inmates, all of whom have been adjudi-

cated insane, and there were considerably better thlan 50 per cent
straight out and out insane given our legal test of right and wrong,
and ahout 30 per cent answered to his teat that t%xey would be W"J}lmg
o kill a man providing it was in self-defense, which vs:ou}d very hkel}r
Jeave about 20 per cent that would be reliev'ed of cnmmal. responsi-
bility, and in this case adjudication by ‘a tribunal or administrative
board could not be a defense. . )

JUSTICE MORGAN: I am considerably impressed by the dis-
cussion of this matter by Judge Barelay. I could not help but cast back
over forty years or more in #pd sbout thg cowrts and the struggles
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I have seen made by juries with this most perplexing and difficult
question. Now, I am assuming that a jury desires to do right, almost
to the exclusion of its desire to follow the law. Where insanity is a
defense, if the crime committed is sufficiently heinous, it would ‘be
disregarded. It doesn’t make any difference how conclusive a distinc-
tion might be established, to the mind of anybody but a juror, he
proposes to exact an eye for an eye and a tooth for a tootb. Upon the
other hand I have been, as you have been, puzzled by the testimony of
those who know about these things, and let’s give them about the same
measure of confidence and same presumption of a desire to do right
that we insist be extended to wus, those so-called mental experts, I
think they know more about it than the ordinary run of men.

It is a public calamity when a man by a framed up defense of in-
sanity escapes merited punishment; it is a public dishonor as well
as & calamity when & man deranged beyond the power to distinguish
between right and wrong has heen forced to meet the end of a con-
victed murderer.

I am wondering if it would not be a good idea to get before our

~ courts this question before the Lepislature meets, Possibly one of

these proceedings for am advisory judgment, might be had, It is &
matter of very great public importance; it is a matter that the Legis-
lature should not be permitted to undertake blindly and without the
benefit of a forecast as to what the courts may be expected to do with
this constitutional guestion which puzzles our Ada County prosecut-
ing attorney and which, I might say, raises considerable question in
my mind, a question which ought to be determined finally and for all
time, and then let Idaho go ahead, and in an enlightened way. If it be
determined that we may do this without the amendment of our con-
stitution, do this; and, if not, procure an amendment.

To a board of alienists and men skilled in weighing matters of this
kind, the circumstances of that particular crime as charged would not
be a prevailing consideration, and justice would be much more likely
to prevail, it seems to me, were the machinery of the law in the hands
of those who know just how to use it. I am very much in accord with
Judge Bareclay’s suggestion, if it may be done, and it seems to me that
the Legislature has to prepare the way or determine whether it is
constitutional or not.

JUDGE WINSTEAD: We might consider this subject of insanity
as a defense along the lines laid down by the Supreme Court in con-
nection with sanity in civil matters where the question is raised in
regard to instruments which have been executed. The rule is Iaid
down in a recent case in north Idaho, I believe, that the result of an’
inquisition adjudging or putting a man in an insane asylum raises
no presumption as to his sanity; it is a question of fact to be determ-
ined, whether or not he was insane or sane at the time the act was
committed. If you follow the same rule in criminal matters, it seems
to me that the result of a board of inquisition would be gquestionable;
in other words, there must be a jury to pass upon the guestion of
fact of whether or not the defendant was sane or insane at the time
the act was committed. Now, from that point of view, it oceurs to me
that the California statute which is suggested by the prosecutors is a
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great improvement over our present gystem, and personally I am in
favor of the recommendation of the prosecutors.

The experts’ testimony in a murder case, upon either gide, is no
more difficult for a jury to consider than the expert testimony in your
average automobile accident cagse. That goes back to the whole ques-
tion of the allowance of the uwse of expert witnesses in any kind of
o case unless these experts are selected either by the court or by some
disinterested party. )

Tn this matter of insanity as a defense you are determining whether
or not the defendant was insane at the time the act was committed; if
you follow the rule laid down for civil actions it is a question of fact.
There must be some jury, if a man's constitutional rights are to be
upheld, to pass upon this question of fact, and the jury should determ-
ine from all the facts end circumstances in connection with the trans-
action whether or not the man was insane at the time the act was
committed.

ME. PAINE: As part of the same trial?

JUDGE WINSTEAD: As T understand it, after the plea of not
guilty by reason of insanity is raised, if the jury determines that the
man was sane at the time the act was committed, it is in effect an ad-
mission of guilt and a plea of guilty.

JUDGE BARCLAY: The California statute requires them to try
the offense first and the insanity second, and for the purpose of the
criminal trial the Iaw says that he is conclusively presumed to be sane.
Now, if you ean get by that with most of the Supreme Courts, that is
good.

MR. MOFFATT: Doesn’t that make two pleas?

JUDGE BARCLAY: TUnder that statute, if he does not make th
plea of not guilty by reason of insamity, of course, it is not heard.

MR. MOFFATT: In the Hickman case I think you will find the
state introduced the indictment and the plea and rested, and the de-
fense undertook tbe burden of the rest of the case.

MR. WALTER H. ANDERSON: It seems to me that this method
that prevails in California and, I believe, in Utah too, is somewhat
cumbersome, and simply leads into a great many difficulties. The first
trial is had and under this so-called alleged conclusive presumption
the man is sane and that question is not tried at all; in other words,
the jury goes out and determines whether or not a crime has been

committed, which it seems to me must necessarily invelve that matter
of intent, but they are not permitted to consider that, and they merely
consider whether or not the ciime has been committed and whether
the defendant committed it. 'With that judgment they have ne diffi-
culty. They merely bring in a verdict of guilty, we will say. Then
suppose that they submit the question of insanity or sanity to the
jury, and they go out and it is a hung jury. Just where are you under
this proceeding at that time? Do you impanel another jury te try
the whole issue, or to try the question of sanity or insamity? T think
the law provides for trial before the same jury. Where have you got-
ten to, and what are you going to do about it? I believe there is some
such question now down in Utah, and they don’t know. what to do
with it. The first jury convicted the fellow and the second jury was
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hung as to whether or not he was insane, and I understand his eoun-
8¢l is ingisting that he is entitled to another new trial on the whole
iss:ue by reason of this provision to try the issue of insanity before
a jury.

As to the question of a board or commission to pass upon the in-
sanity, that might be a very good method, but it seems to me that
over the period of the last twenty-five years the lawyers have either
acquiesced in or aided in tbe removal of business and the trying of
cass from the courts to boards and commissions, and, to start with,
Iam l.'laturally prejudiced against anything that looks like a board or
commission. I may be a little bit old-fashioned, but I believe the place
to try all questions is in courts of justice. The pages of history will not
disclose a betier place to try them than before the courts, and I would
be opposed to any method that would take the trial outside of the conrt.
) JUDGE SUTTON: My experience with the defense of insanity
in criminal cases (and I have had two of t}iem) leads me to believe
that the entire confusion and difficulty arises from a lack of legal
standard of accountability as distinguished from s medical standard.
If you want to adopt the medical standard as the legal standard of

. accountability, why, our present system iz about the only way you

can do it, as I view it, but if we had some established legal standard of
accountability you would eliminate a lot of this fine spun language
that Judge Barclay ig talking about, and the average jury, I believe,
is capable of determining a man's ability to determine between right
and wrong, we will say, but if you let these fellows fill the record
full of a lot of higb-sounding phrases you are not going to get any-
where. My objection to the California system is in permitting a man
?o offer two pleas. If he is not guilty, let his plead mot guilty; if he
is insane, let him plead that; and you won't be troubled with that
:}iltuation‘_ It is the double-barreled plea that causes the trouble down
ere,

MR. FRASER: Do I understand in California they have a right
to pl_ea.d not guilty, and then not guilty by reasen of insanity, and he
is tried on the insanity ples and if they find he is sane he can he tried
for the erime?

JUDGE BARCLAY: They try the crime first.

MR. FRASER: 1 think he has then the right to have two pleas
and he is entitled to be tried on both, because the attorney would not
know which end of the string to take hold of, whether to try him for
one or the other,

‘ME. MARCUS: I have been informed—I have not looked it up
sufficiently to state the anthority—that the English rule is this: if &

-fellow comes in and pleads not guilty by reason of insanity, they take

him at his word and put him in some special asylum for insane people
who commit erimes, for life. It seems to me that would be the quickest
way to get rid of them. They are dangerous to society. Why not put
them away for life and thus get rid of them and they cannot take the
life of anybody ?

JUDGE KQELSCH: It seems to me you cannot get away from
what Judge Winstead said here. A man charged with a crime says,

“] was insane at the time I committed it.” He is Taising a question
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of fact. He has a right to have that tried out just the same as he
has a right to have any other question of fact tried out. Now, the
California system is, if he puts in both pleas, they first try him on the
plea of not guilty. During that trial the question of insznity is not
permitted to be raised, and he is conclusively presumed to be sane.
Then, if he has also entered the plea of mot guilty by reason of in-
sanity, they try that out afterwards by the same jury. I dom’t think
that is a very good system. As a matter of fact, under our Constitu-
tion and under any amendment we can make to the Constitution, as
long as that raises a question of fact, I don’t think you can improve
epon it, except that I have this suggestion, which I have seen some-
where, that would meet the objection raised by semebody; if he wants
to plead insanity, he should notify the prosecuting attorney ahead
of time; if you want to make it a separate plea, very well, or try both
of them at the same time, but give the prosecuting attorney a chance
to meet it. As was said here by Judge Barclay, if that is not done,
then at the trial the prosecuting attorney, not having any advance
notice of it, is taken at a disadvantage; the defendant has his psychi-
atrists in the offng and the prosecuting attorney knows nothing
about it,

MR, WELKER: If I remember correctly, at the prosecutors’
meeting yesterday it was the conclusion that we would accept the
proposition here of Judge Barclay if we could be assured that this
constitutional question of the trial by jury in the case of insanity
would not be raised, but in view of that fact it was our suggestion
that we adopt this California system until arrangement could be made
to clear it up. Then we would sugpest this proposition that was sug-
pested by Judge Barclay,

Judge Barclay suggested an administrative or semi-judicial board
be appointed to determine the sanity or insanity of a defendant—I
would like to ask how this board would be appointed ?

Tn this little case at Cascade we didnt have much trouble getting
defense witnesses, psychiatrists, and I found, much to my embarrass-
ment and chagrin, that the state was a lot better equipped when it
came to psychiatrists than we were, The leading psychiatrist, super-
intendent of a certain insane asylum in scutheagtern Idahe came up
here and testified for the state, very strongly, I might say, vet at the
same time when I was prosecuting attorney that same individual came
to Weiser and testified for the defense, 1 believe we are getting along
all right under the present system.

MR, McCARTY: It seems to me that at every meeting I come to
the prosecuting attorneys are wanting to pass some resolution in some
way to give the state some advantage over the poor individual who
may happen to fall within their toils. The prosecetors ask that they
be permitted to join all of the counts they see fit in one information
and they cannot be required to elect between the different counts set
forth in the information, and that you can be convicted of any or all
of the offenses charged, and then on top of that they come in and ask
that defendant must state who his witnessea are and what his plea is.
My position iy that whenever a man is charged with a crime, if he

ki AT O N Sy
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enters a plea of not guilty, as at the present time, he can raise any
defense that he might have,

MR. SWANSTROM: I think perhaps we were at fault in not fully
explaining to the Bar why we favor that resolution. I am certain that
the prosecuting attorneys in their meeting yesterday had no desire,
as was intimated by one apeaker here, to prosecute any man in the
State of Idaho who is insane. That can be accepted as the concensus
of opinion of the prosecutors. I am certain that the prosecuting attor-
neys had no desire to dictate the manner hy which these various is-
sues of sanity or insanity might be determined in criminal procedure,
but that they simply want some changes whereby the state might have
notice of the raising of that plea prior to the actual trial of the case.

In the defense of 2 man charged with crime, there are only two
defenses, namely, that the man did not do the act charged, or that he
was justified in doing it. Now, you say suppose he is insane, In
any crime involving intent, if the man was insane, he didn’t commit
the crime, did he? He eould not do it, and it resolves down to this: Is
insanity a defense at all, or is it a state of mind, a state of inteilect,
a condition under which crime cannot he committed? If a man is

. insane, he has no defense to the charge of murder, hecause he cannot

commit murder; he cannot form the intent.

Now, ag to the determination of that state of mind; if he iz en-
titled to use that as a defense, then I think it should properly be de-
termined by the jury, the same as any other fact; hut if he cannot
commit the crime, then why should he go before & jury and present
it a3 a defense. There ought to be another way of determining that
state of mind, whether or not it is possible for him to commit a crime.

MR. GRAHAM: I am glad the suhject has drawn forth so much
fire. What animated me in suggesting the subject was the length of
time it generally takes to try a criminal case where the question of
insanity is raised, as wag tlie case in the Van Flack case down at
Twin Falls, Three or four weeks time is taken, a lot of expense in-
curred, psychiatrists, and so forth, and I was wondering whether there
wasn't some easier way of disposing of the question of insanity rather
than submitting it to the jury.

‘We don’t seem to be any nearer the goal than we were when we
started. I am going to appoint a committee and refer this resolution
to a committee, for it is well worth more digscussion and more investi-
gation: Judge Winstead is chairman; Judge Barclay, Mr. McCarty,
Herman Welker, and Mr. Moffatt, If this committee in their judg-
ment deems it wise to propose any legislation at the mext session of
the Legislature, as far as I am concerned they may do it; if they do
not deem it wise, then we will expect you to report one year hence
at our annual meeting.

That still leaves for our discussion here the question of the prose-
cutors in regard to two or more offenses in one indictment.

I am going to refer that same resolution to that same committee.
You are to take the proposed resolutions and work out some method,
if in your conclusion you deem it wise.

JUSTICE MORGAN: I suggest that an effort be made to get an
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advisory judgment on the constitutionality of the changes suggested.
MR. GRAHAM: This finishes our forencon program, and we will
now adjourn until two o’clock,

{Adjournment)

AFTERNOON SESSION
Friday, July 24, 1936, 2:00 P. M.

MRE. GRAHAM: The next thing is the report of a committes, Mr,
Bistline.

MR. BISTLINE: The committee on uniform by-laws met yester-
day afternoon, and after considerable deliberation have to submit a
code of uniform by-laws for the local bar associations. Necessarily
this has some blanks in it as we found it impossible to make a uniform
set that would apply to each district. T believe, Mr. President, it
would be advisable for me to read the entire proposed code rather
than discussing it section by section.

REPORT OF COMMITTEE ON UNIFORM BY-LAWS

Your Committee met at Payette Lake Inn, July 23, 1036, pursuant '

to call of the Commissioners of the Idaho State Bar, and now recom-
mend the adoption of the following:

‘CODE OF UNIFORM BY-LAWS FOR LOCAL BAR
ABSQCIATIONS

Section II. Purposee. The purposes of this Association shall be to
cultivate and advance the geience of jurisprudence; to promote reform
in the law and in judicial procedure; to facilitate the administration
of justice; to uphold and elevate the standard of honor, of integrity
and of courtesy in the legal profession; to encourage a spirit of cor-
diality and harmony among its members, and to co-operate with the
lstate Bar Association in its efforts to prevent the illegal practice of
aw,

Section III. Memberzhip. Any person who is a2 member in good
standing of the Bar of the State of Idaho and a resident within the
........................ District of said State, shall ipso facto be a member of
this Asfociation, and shall pay a membership fee of $.onrnee.o, to the
Treasurer of this Association on or before the.......... day of each year.

Section IV. Meetings. The annual meeting of the Association shali
be held @t within............... days prior to the Annual
Meeting of the Idaho State Bar, on a date to he fixed by the Execu-
tive Committee. .

Special meetings may be called by the President, or upon the writ-
ten request of any.......... members. At least........ days written
notice of any meeting shall be mailed by the Secretary to each mem-
ber of the Association, at his last known address.

Section V. Quorum, Until further action by the Association,
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members of the Association shall constitute a quorum for the trans-
action of business at any meeting.

Section VI. Officers. The officers of the Association shall consist
of a President, a Vice-President, a Secretary and Treasurer, an Exec-
utive Committee and such other officers as the Association may deem
necessary. The President, Vice-President, Secretary and Treasurer
shall be elected at the annual meeting of the Agsociation and shall
hold office for the period of one year and until their successors are
fully elected. '

Section VII. Executive Committee. The Executive Committee shall
be composed of one member from each of the................. Counties with-
in the Judicial Districts comprising the Association,
The members of this Committee are to be appointed by the President
upon the recommendation of the members of the Asgociation residing
in the County from which a particular member is appointed. The

" President and Secretary shall be ex-officio members of the committee.

The executive committee shall have full executive power and author-
ity in the interval hetween the meetings of the Association, A ma-
jority of the committee shall constitute 2 quorum. Meetings may be
called by the President upon the request of ... ... members of the
committee. At least ... days written notice of any meeting
shall be mailed to the members of the committee at their last known
address. Notice of the time and place of any meeting may be waived,
or any action of the committee ratified by non-attending members at
any time,

Section VIII, Committees. At the regular annuoal meeting of the
Asgociation the President elected thereat shall appoint the following
named standing committees to serve umtil the next annual meeting
thereafter, namely: A committee of three on proposed legislation and
court rules; a committee of three on ethics and grievances; and in ad-
dition thereto may, at any time, appoint such special committees as he
may deem necessary.

Tt shall be the duty of the legislative committee to consider, and
in their judgment propose, any legislation relating to the judiciary, the -
Bar, practice and procedure in the courts, the practice of law and all
kindred subjects; it shall be the duty of the committee on ethics and
grievances to receive and investigate reports involving any breach of
legal ethies, and also any breach of by-laws or adopted regulation,

Section IX. Ithics. The cannons of professional ethicg of the
American Bar Association now in effect or as hereafter amended or
adopted shall constitute the Gode of Ethics of this Association,

Section X. Rules and Regulations. The Association is empowered
to adopt such rules and regulations as it shall see fit, ineluding a
minimum fee schedule as hereinafter defined, to fix and prescribe penal-
ties for the violation thereof and the machinery for the enforcement
thereof not inconsistent with the rules and regulations of the Supreme
Court, the State Bar Association or Board of Commissioners of the
State Bar.

Any minimuom fee adopted shall not be construed as fixing the
maximum fee or the reasonable fee to be charged in any given case
or situation; in determining the amount of fee to be charged for any
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legal service, there should be taken into consideration the aetual time
required, the character of the questions involved and their diffieulty,
and the skill required to properly conduet the business; the possibility
of an acceptance of the particular busineas precluding the lawyer’s
representing other persons in similar cases, or cases likely to arise
out of the transaction, and when there is a reasonable expectation that
otherwise he would be employed on the other side of the transaction;
the customary charges for similar services; the amount involyed in
the controversy; the contingency of certainty of the compensa-
tion; the character of the employment as being casusl or for an
established and constant client; the standing, experience and ability
of the lawyer; the relations exiating between the attorney and the
client in reference to other business, particularly the annuai retainers;
the ability to pay and the resuits obtained-—the reagonable or maximum
fee being ultimately a question between the attorney and the client.

Section XI, Amendments. These by-laws shall be amended only at
a meeting of the State Bar Association, provided the rules and regu-
lations which may be adopted by the Association under the authority
of these by-laws, may be amended in a manner prescribed by the As-
soelation,

MR. BISTLINRE: Mr. President, I move the adoption of this uni-
form code of by-laws.

A VOICE: Second the motion.

MR, HARDY: Who fixes this minimum fee schedule?

MR. BISTLINE: The loeal bar association will fix that, if they
want to, or don’t want to.

. MR. HARDY: Iam thoroughly opposed to it,

JUSTICE MORGAN: Is the adoption of the fee schedule com-
pulsory ?

ME. BISTLINE: No, That will be Ieft to the discretion of the
local association whether it adopts a fee schedule,

MR. GRIFFIN: I notice one suggestion of a legislative commit-
tee. Would it not be better for the local legislative committee to
refer any matter of legislation to the State Bar legislative committee
and have it all handled in one place ?

MR. GRAHAM: They might act in conjunction with the State
Bar committee,

MR, MOFFATT: If there be diseiplinary action on the minimum
fee schedule, and the fee schedule iz to be determined by the distriet
bar association, supposing there is a difference between the Third Dis-
trict fee achedule and the Seventh District fee schedule, and the
Seventh District attorney comes over in the Tihrd District and tries
a case, the question would be as to what fee schedule applies in the
case of diseiplinary action by the proper authorities, there being no
state-wide schedule.

MR. BISTLINE: That matter was not discusged by the entire
committee. The question was not raised, and the matter of the mini-
mum fee schednle was left entirely to the discretion of the associa-
tion. It would be my idea that each association could make some rule
in conmection with their fee schedule that might cover it. In drafting
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these proposed by-laws we did not want to go into anything like that,
but left it entirely up to the association.

MR. WALTER H. ANDERSON: It would seem to me in this
case it is asaumed that the rulee of the district wherein the case is
being tried should prevail.

MR. NIXON: 1 would think in view of what Mr. Bistline has just
said about that, if these rules are to be uniform, that that very thing
sbould be incorporated so that there would be no question.

For instance, if they come from ‘Canyon County into the Third
District, and this 'Third District fee schedule is to be applicable, that
ought to be put in the uniform rules so that it would be uniform
throughout the state,

MR. BISTLINE: It might be that a section should be added stating
that “within the jurisdictional limits of the Association the rules would
apply to all attorneys coming into the distriet.”

ME. GRAHAM: Before we adopt that, I will defer action on that
to give you a few minutes, and take up the next order of business.

ME. WALTER H. ANDERSON: Isit the purpose to organize and
charge dues in addition to what we pay for the license fee each year to
belong to the State Bar?

MR, BISTLINE: That is in the discretion of each distriet asso-

" ciation.

MR. GRAHAM: We are now ready to receive the report of the
judicial section. Judge Koelsch.

JUDGE KOELSCH: We discussed two subjects—one the adop-
tion of uniform rules for the district and trial course, and the other
were some cbanges in substantive and procedural law pertaining to
crime, T have here the rules and I can read them if you desire. I don’t
know that anything would be gained by it. I don’t know whether they
are open to amendment even, They are adopted—

MR. GRAHAM: (Interrupting.) May I ask you & question? Was
it the intention that these rules be now adopted and be put into exe-
cution at once, or was it the purpose of your committee that you would
rather that tbey lie over for one year for further consideration?

JUDGE KOHELSCH: No, as I understand it, the consensus of
opinion was that these are the fingl draft of the rules that we have.
‘0f course, other rules can be added from time to time, but at the pres-
ent time these are the rules that are to be adopted by the various
courts.

MR. GRAHAM: 1 think we should have those rules read. Tt is
unfair to have them adopted without reading them.

JUDGE KOELSCH: Rule No. 1; “Immediately prior to the com-
mencement of every term, the clerk shall make up a calendar of all
criminal cases, including appeals from inferior eourts, and of all civil
cases at any Issue pending in the court, or in which the time for ap-
pearing is shown to have expired. The clerk shall note opposite each
cage briefly the nature of the action, the names of attorneys and upon
what issve the cage is pending, and in eriminal cases whether the de-
fendant is in custody or has been admitted to bail,

“The clerk shall arrange the calendar into such divisions ag the
Court or Judge may direct.”
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Rule No. 2. *“The Calendar will be called at the opening of each
term, and at such other times as the Court or Judge may designate.”

Rule No. 3 was eliminated. I might read it: “All motions, de-
murrers or other proceedings involving only issues at law mey be ealled
for hearing immediately following the call of the calendar and parties
must be ready to try them without prior setting thereof.” I think the
main ebjection to that was that it should require notice, and the rule
was therefore eliminated entirely.

Rule No. 4: *All attorneys having matters pending before the
Court must, unless excused by the Court, be present or be represented
by some one at the calling of the calendar; otherwise the cause may, in
the diseretion of the Court, be stricken from the active calendar.”

Rule No. 5: “Any case in which no action has been taken by the
parties for one year, may be ordered dismissed by the Court, unless
good caunge for non-action be shown,”

Rule No. 6: “All defendants on bail in criminal cases must be per-
sonally present in court at the opening thereof on the first day of each
term, or in lieu thereof may appear by counsel, but must thereafter be
ready for arraighment or other proceedings at such time or times as
the Court shall appoint, defaulting in which the bail bonds will be
forfeited.”

Rule No. 7: “No ex parte divorce case will be granted until after
the expiration of the full statutory time for appearing, even though
a waiver of such time of appearance has been filed by or on behalf of
the defendant.”

Rule No. 8: “If any case is set for trial, and it ig subsequently
ascertained by counsel that same cannot be tried on the date set, said
attorney is required to forthwith advise the court of such situation
to the end that veluable time will not be consumed or unnecessary ex-
pense incurred. If applcation for continuance is to be made, same
must be timely presented, as soon after the setting of the case for
trial, 25 the ground for continuance is discovered, No continuance will
be granted unless diligence is shown in this respect.”

Rule No. 9: “When a demurrer or motion to reform a pleading is
sustained, the pleader shall have five days to amend, unless the Court
shall fix a different time; when & demurrer or motion to reform a com-
plaint is overruled, and no answer is on file, the answer sghall be filed
within five days, unless the Court shail fix a different time.”

Rule No. 10: “In cases where the right to amend any pleading is
not of course, the party desiring to amend, except when the application
is made during the trial of a cause, shall serve adverse party with no-
tice of application to amend, an engrossed copy of the pleading with
the amendment ineorporated therein, or a copy of the proposed amend-
ment, referring to the page and line of the pleading where it is desired
that the amendment be inserted, and if the pleadings were verified,
shall verify such amended pleading or such proposed amendment before
such proposed application shall be heard.”

I did not explain that these rules I am reading from were prepared
by Judge Hunt, and I have read them as he sent them, with Rule 8
eliminated by the discussion yesterday, and Rule No. 11, to which I
now have arrived, also ordered amended so that it reads this way:
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“Whenever counse] for either party files a demurrer, either special
or general, or a motion directed to the adverse party’s pleadings, he
shall, within five days after service of the demurrer or motion, serve
upon the adverse party or his counsel, and file with the Clerk, a short
brief of the points and authorities relied upon in support of such de-
murrer or motion. Unless such brief is served or filed within said
time, the party attacking the pleadings will not be permitted to cite
authorities or file any brief in support of said demurrer or motion.”

Rule No, 12: “No paper, record or file in any cause shall be taken
from the custody of the Clerk, except for the use of the Court, or
upon written order of the Court or Judge.”

Rule No. 18 reads as follows: “Arguments in civil jury cases shall
precede the giving of instructions to the jury by the Court.”

This rule wae also eliminated,

Rule No. i4 reads: “All requested instructions must be presented

at or hefore the close of the evidence, and accompanied with citations,
and a copy thereof served on opposing counsel. * * * »
I haven’t the amendment that was 2dded to that, but the amendment
was to the effect that the Judge may give an opportunity for counsel to
be heard to raise objections to any proposed instruction, eight that sub-
.mitted by adverse party or on the motion of the Court itself, and that
objection made of record in the case. If &lch an opportunity is pre-
sented by the Court and no cobjections are made, the party will there-
after be precluded from raising any such gbjections; if the Court does
not give that opportunity, he can thereafter raise any objections that
he can now, The rest of Rule 14 pertains to form:

“2. Instructions shall be on white typewriter paper of legal size,
typewritten and double spaced. They shall be furnished to the Court
in two sets, the original and carbon copies. The citations offered ghall
be noted only upon the carbon copies.

“3. The carbon copies shall have a cover sheet upon which will be
written the title of eourt and cause, together with the following en-
dorsement signed by counsel representing the party presenting the
instruetion: '

‘Comes, now the plaintiff (or defendant) and requests the Court to

. give the following instructions:

) Attorney for Plaintiff (or Defendant).’
“4.  Al} original instructions shall be headed in capital letters as
follows:
INSTRUCTION NO............. ’
“5.  The carbon copies may be numbered in order, but on all orig-

inal instructions the number shall be left hlank,

“g. The heading ‘INSTRUGCTION NOQ.......... ? heretcfore referred
to, shall be at least two inches from the top of the page, and the in-
structions shall be not less than 13 inches (four double spaces) below
the heading.

“7. No word in the hody of an instruction shall be capitalized,
underscored, or emphasized in any manner.”

MR. GRAHAM: Pardon me. In that rule you dow’'t mean that
proper names cannof be capitalized?
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JUDGE KOELSCH: I presume that means spelled emtirely in
capitels in order to emphasize it. It doesn’t mean not to eommence 2
proper name with a capital letter. It means not to capitalize, under-
geore or emphasize. ‘

Rule No. 15 reads: “When a cause is decided requiring findings of
fact, conclusions of iaw and decree, same shall be prepared by counsel
representing the party in whose favor the decision is rendered, and a
copy thereof shall be served upon opposing counsel, who shall have
five days in which to file written objections and propose amendments,
and if no objections be made or amendments be proposed within said

* time, such findings, conclusions and decree shall be deemed in con-
formity with oppesing counsel’s view of the decision and may be
adopted or modified as the Court deems proper.”

Rule No. 16: “Transcripts on appeal from Justice and Probate
Courts must be filed in this Court and costs of filing paid by appellant
within fifteen days after the perfeetion of said appeal, when said
appeal is taken on guestions of both law and fact, and within thirty
days after the perfection of said appeal when said appeal is taken
upon ¢uestions of law only; and apon failure so to do, the respondent
in the appesl, at any time before said transcript is filed by said appel-
lant, may cause such transecript to be filed, paying the prescribed fee,
and placed upon the calendar for dismissal; Provided, that in case the
delay is caused by any default or neglect of the Justice of Clerk of the
Probate Court, the fact may be shown by affidavit and dismissal de-
nted.”

Rule No. 17: “I. In all civil canses transferred from another coun-
ty, the party at whose instance such order of transfer was made, must
deposit witb the Clerk of this Court statutory filing fees. If said party
fails to pay said fee within five days after said papers have been re-
ceived, the oppesite party may pay the same, have the cause placed
upon the calendar and move for its dismissal.

%2, When any cause is transferred from sanother county upon
stipulation of the parties, such parties must arrange to pay such filing
fee between themselves. If said filing fees are not paid within five days
after said papers are received, the Court may, upon its own motion,
order the dismissal of said cause.” ' )

Rule No. 18: “l1. In all causes, transferred from the Justices’
Courts by virtue of the provisions of Sec, 10-207, 1. C. A., the moving
party must, witbin five days after said papers have been received by the
Clerk of the District Court, deposit with said Clerk the statutory filing
fee. Upon failure to make such deposit within said five days, the
opposing party may pay said fee and have said cause placed upon the
calendar for dismissal,”

Rule No, 19: “No attorney shall be received as surety upon any
bond, undertaking or recognizance filed in any action or judicial pro-
ceeding in which he is attorney or of counsel,”

Rule No. 20t *Any of the foregoing rules may, in special cases,
be suspended to meet the exigencies of the case. The party applying
for such suspension shall make proper showing of such exigeney.”

MR. GRAHAM: Are there any objections now, or suggestions,
in regard to any particular rule? '
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ME. WALTER H. ANDERSON: The rule 17 does not seem very
clear to me. Suppose it was the plaintiff and he didn’t want it dis-
missed. That appears to be his only remedy, and there are such things
as tranefers in that manner, and that rule provides only for dismissal
whether it is plaintifi’s or defendant’s. That is the only remedy and
he would have his own action dismissed,

MR. GRAHAM: In other words, the application for change of
venue came from the defendant and the plzintiff could pay the fee
and then what remedy would he have?

MR. WALTER H. ANDERSON: Most of the change of venues
are by the defendant because they are hrought in the wrong county
and he can move them into the other county and leave them and the
plaintiff can only go and pay the fees and dismiss his own action.

MR. GRAMAM: If the case is not removed hy the defendant, the
plaintiff has to pay the filing fee. He doesnt have {o take advantage
of the motion to dismiss. That is for his protection.

JUDGE KQOELSCH: I think Mr. Anderson’s point is good.

MR. WALTER H. HANSON: Does that say “may” or “must”?

JUDGE KOELSCH: Even if it doesn’t say “may” or “must,” it
makes the plaintiff pay the fee, He starts it in Bannock County and
defendant moves it to Ada County and doesn’t pay the fee. Then the
plaintiff has to come in and pay that fee, and if he doesn’t want it dis-
migsed he has got to pay that fee,

MR. WALTER H. ANDERSON: Yes. If he does pay the fee and
had it transferred, he ought to have some remedy. )

JUDGE KOELSCH: My understanding is that the plaintiff can
go in and move to have it transferred back.

JUDGE SUTTON: If he files it in the wrong county, why shouldn’t
he pay the fee?

MR. O’LEARY: The statute is this: When an action is filed in
that eounty, the defendant may move to have it transferred to another
county, and the plaintiff may then come in on payment of the fee
and remand it to the original county on certain grounds, whieh grounds
are: First, on the ground that it would be an unreasonable expense
to the plaintiff to try it in another county, In other words, suppose
you have an action in Bannock County, the defendant being a resident
of Shoshone County. The plaintiff may come in Shoshone County
(there is an annotation on the Code to that effect) and move it back
to Bannock County on a showing that the expenses and costs of bring-
ing the witnesses to Shoshone County and the residence of the defend-
ant would be so great that it should he moved hack to the original
county, and the only authority that I am aware of is that it shall be
moved baek te Bannock County,

MR. THOMAS: Has the judicial branch of the government the
right to legislate? Suppose we find a conflict between the judicial
rules as adopted and what the legislature says. Who has the right to
legislate

JUDGE KOELSCH: 1 think we will hear more about that from
Judge Ailshie,

MR.. THOMAS: Suppose the defendant in a divorce case comes
in, must we have the delay? Is there anything in the statute that says
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that he can’t? Which prevails, the rules adopted by the court or by the
legislature ? Who has the supreme power, the legislature or the judi-
ciary? Is that substantive law or is that merely procedure?

JUDGE KOELSCH: Judge Ailshie will discuss that and I think
you will get some information, but if you are asking me that guestion
I will say that within the jurisdiction of the court itself it has power
to regulate. The legislature cannot interfere with the Supreme Court.
The Supreme Court makes its own rules, and if there is conflict, the
court’s rules would be supreme, :

MR. PAINE: I assume that it meant that the plaintif would
have the right of dismissal of the application to have it removed. Why
would he want it dismissed if he is plaintiff in that action?

JUDGE KOELSCH: He doesn't, but Mr. Anderson’s point is that
he is penalized to this extent that he bas to pay the fee in order to
have it placed on the calendar in the new county where he probably
deesn’t want it.

MR. PAINE: And then it is dismissed after he had paid that
fee, Could you assume that that meant that it was remanded back to
the original county?

MR. WALTER H. ANDERSON: If that is the construction put
on the rule, of course, I think that would be all right, because I think
that iz where it should go to, if the defendant takes the removal and
does not pay the fee to have it refiled.

JUDGE VARIAN: Inthat case you can vacate the order.

JUDGE XOELSCH: I don’t think the removal is complete until
the fees are paid and the case is put upon the calendar,

MER. GRAHAM: Why not fix & time in which the defendant must
pay the fee on his motion to remove, or it is remanded back to the
court from which it arose? Unless the defendant pays, he is not in the
other court and the plaintiff can have his papers sent back without
paying the filing fee.

JUSTICE MORGAN: Why wouldn't it be well to refer this rule
back to tbe judicial section? The ultimate decision has got to be made
by the district judpes.

MRE. DONALD ANDERSON: Before you refer that back, may
I make one suggestion? In order to avoid the necessity of having to
contest a motion for removal and then having to pay the fee, why not
provide that the fee be tendered at the time the motion is filed and
it could be remitted with the papers?

MR. McCARTY: 1 believe the rule should be that if the person
who makes the motion doesn't pay the fees, then it stays in the court
where it originally started.

MR. GRAHAM: T think you have several suggestions. You ean
amend that accordingly. Are there any other suggestions?

MR. PAINE: I want to make a further suggestion with reference
to rule 11 requiring briefs to be filed in support of general and spe-
cial demurrers and motions, It occurred to me that the judges are
inviting us to withhold cases in point. Qur reward will be that the
judge makes a mistake and when we get to the Supreme Court we
can spring this case we have for the first time. Now, as members of
the Bar we should disclose everything, There is ng way of enforeing

IDAHCO STATE BAR PROCEEDINGS 31

this, as the rule is read and I understand it, in the Supreme Court.
I demur; I file no brief; and Judge Koelsch says, “I will overrule the
demurrer.,” That is just what I want him to do. There is a fatal
defect in the pleading, and it goes to the Supreme Court, and there
I job the Judge and my opponent. Now, many, many years ago Judge
Dietrich joined me in preparing a bill that went through the legisla-
ture, to remedy this thing of keeping up your sleeve a fatal defect
in a complaint on the ground that it doesn’t state a cause of action,
and a very able lawyer, who was then Governor of the State, vetoed
it before Judge Dietrich and I could get to him and explain what we
had in the bill. That is hardly justice; that is playing a game. That
is just what this rule invites. Unless the Supreme Court is going to
say that I cannot urge that objeetion before Judge Koelsch or any
other trial court, if I don’t give him the benefit of it—it is 2 bad rule.

MR. GRAHAM: Will yon read that rule, Judge?

JUDGE KOELSCH: Let me read the proposed rule that this rule
was to supplant. Rule No 11 (this is as originally submitted): “When-
ever counsel for either party files a demurrer, either general or special,
or a motion directed to the adverse party’s pleadings, he shall within
five days thereafter, serve upon the adverse party, or his counsel, and
file with the Clerk, a short brief of the points and authorities relied
upon in support of such demurrer or motion, and a failure to file
such brief within said time $hall be deemed a waiver of such motion
or demurrer.”

MR. PAINE: Yes. Well, both rules are very bad. I don’t know
which rule is the worse. All you are entitled to in any trial is such
a brief as is given the Supreme Court.

JUDGE WINSTEAD: For the information of the attorneys, the
rule first read, wbich was in the original draft, is the Oregon rule of
practice, and the rule which was last read is the Utah rule of prac-
tice, partially.

JUDGE KOELSCH: It might not be becoming, but I will say I
agree with Mr. Paine. If a general demurrer is filed, nobody knows
whether the attorney wheo files it means anything by it or not. We
have no such rule, but I have done this time and again—I have said,
“Is your demurrer merely an appearance demurrer?” Ninety times
out of a hundied tbe attorney will tell me, “Yes,” and sometimes they
will say, “No, I have a point.”

MRE. HAWLEY: What is the necessity of either rule?

JUDGE KOELSCH: A general demurrer is filed. Now, as I said,
it may be good. They may have a poinf up their sleeve that really is
meritorious, but here is a general demurrer and you have nothing to
indicate that point they have in mind, and if they were required to
show the authorities and show the points, you could rule intelli-
gently, which cannot be done on a blind demurrer.

MR. MOFFATT: As I understand it, rule 9 on pleadings after
demurrer, changes the time for answer. My understanding of the sta-
tute is that there is g difference between the time set up in the rule now
and the statutory time to plead after demurrer. It is ten days, isn’t it,
in the statute?

MR. A, L. MORGAN: The statute says ten days unless another time
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is fixed hy the Court. At any event I think the Court has the right
to fix the time irrespective of what the legislature says about it.

MR. THOMAN: May I ask Judge Koelsch if it is intended by
that rule 11 to limit any argument or points raised to the points set
forth in the memorandum ?

JUDGE KOELSCH: 1 presume that is intended.

MR. THOMAN: I asked that question for the reason that fre-

quently the attorney gets a brain-storm between the time he files the

demurrer or motion and the time that he argues it, and I think the

Court should receive the benefit of that. Isn’t the Court to determine.

the matter on its merits after hearing the complete argument, and
not after hearing an argument on the points that may be set up in
some memorandum that he files?

JUDGE KOELSCH: The real purport of the rule is this: To
prevent the filing of general demurrers that have nothing in them,
blind demurrers. ‘That is the real purpose of it. If a man wanis to
file a demurrer that he thinks has some merit to it, he has got some
authorities to submit with i3, and he may enlarge upon them after-
wards. As a matter of fact the Court can then require argument, I
doubt very much whether he would be confined to tbat, because he
files that brief within five days and then the Court looks it over and
possibly there is something in that and he wants argument, and on
that day he can argue it on his brief.

MR. HARDY: Suppose the client came in just two or three days
before this time for appearance is out, and suppose you are busy on
some other matter. You have an intricate question you have to plead
to. Are you going to be limited to points that occwr to you offhand
when you file a brief in five days? I have a case now that is going to
present an intricate phase of law; if I have to submit a brief in five
days, I cannot do it. Lots of times after a person has filed a general

.demurrer some point of law occurs to him that he has not thought of

before. Are you going to deprive him of something he thinks of later?

JUDGE KOELSCH: My experience has been that tbe attormeys
that have the most business always give their cases the most attention.

MR. HARDY: The attorney that does less business isn't able to
take care of it at all, and in my county the Judge does not reside
there and it is a 75 to 80 mile drive to Lewiston to get to the Judge
and get an oxder. If he resided there, it would be different. It is cum-
bersome and invites errors.

JUDGE KQELSCH: Suppose you file a demurrer and the other
side immediately gives you five days notice of a hearing on that de-
murrer, as he has a right under the statute—what do you do?

MR. HARDY: If you have any point to your demurrer the Judge
finds it out, and if you have a point the Judge usually gives you five
days to file a brief.

JUDGE KOELSCH: You have it here,

MR. HARDY: And you are limited to five days.

JUDGE KOELSCH: There must be a short brief.

MR. HARDY: Tt seems to me you are trying to take away the
discretion of the Judge unnecessarily,

MR, PAINE; I suppose, of gourse, the members of the committee

o
i
e
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considered the fact that it is federal practice for the attorney to eerti-
fy that his demurrer has merit,-and some states require the attorney
to so certify, otherwise it is considered as for delay, It makes it =
matter of honor; if it is merely a time demurrer, an attorney won't
certify that his demurrer has merit. I presume you have considered
that.

MR, MecCARTY: The biggest objection that I see to this rule is
that it is unfair to the district judge, because if the brief is not filed,
then the person who has filed the demurrer is deprived in the district
court of citing any autborities, and the distriet judge does not get
the advantage of authorities, and when he appeals to the Supreme
Court it is not binding on tbe Supreme Court and he can raise all these
authorities, and the distriet judge is getting the worst of that by not
having the benefit in passing upon it.

JUDGE KOELSCH: The purpose was to do away with that fault.
‘At the present time we are in that situation. A general demurrer is

. filed and I ask the attorney, “Is it a good demurrer?” and he says,

“] will submit my demurrer,” It may have a good point, and I don’t
know anything about it and I have to hunt high an] low to find out
anything about it. That is the purpose of this rule.

JUDGE VARIAN: That was my own opinion of it, that it was un-
fair to the district judge when they are cut off by that time limit.

MR, PAINE: If the legislature could correct it—that no objection
could be raised in the Supreme Court that was not raised either on
demurrer or in connection with the evidence during the course of the
trial,

JUDGE KQELSCH: That wouldn’t pertain to a cause of action.

MR. PAINE: Your statete says that you may object to a pleading
on the ground that it does not state a cause of action or a defense, at
any time, and so I may plead or demur and on the trial permit the
evidence to go in and for the first time in the Supreme Court disclose
my point and you have no protection, If your rule reads that ne ob-
jection can be urged in the Supreme Court for the first time that is
not raised in your comrt—

JUDGE KOELSCH: 'Within the objection that there is no cause
of action?

MR, PAINE: Yes.

JUDGE KQELSCH: That is impossible.

MR. PAINE: That hag been passed by the legislature.

MR. A. L. MORGAN: That sounds like the legislature,

MR. HANSON: I thing I can see where that rule may cause great
hardship to clients who have been neglected by their attorneys and
are not to blame for that. I move that that particular rule be elim-
inated.

A VOICE: Second the motion.

MR. A, L. MORGAN: The judges have a right to pass it or not as

. they see fit, and if we eliminate it and the committee isn’t going to—

MR. HAWLEY: {(Interrupting) They know what we think about

_it, and they know that we think it is a very poor rule.

MR. GRAHAM: Those in favor of the motion signify by saying

“Aye,” Those opposed “No.” The “Noes” prevail.
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MR. THOMAN: Referring to Rule 7 concerning ex parte divorces,
I take it that the intent of that is to prevent hasty divorees, to give

the plaintiff and defendant a little time to think the matter over and -

possibly patech up their difficulties, but T am wondering if the rule
will have that effect in view of Rule 9, I believe it is, that provides
that after & demurrer is overruled and no answer is on file the answer
shall be filed within five days unless the Court fixes a different time.
If the demurrer were filed and presented the same day and overruled
after summary argument or no argument and the five day rale would
come in, the defendant would be in default after five days. I am won-
dering if there are not possibly too many rules, and that if any judge
feels that the parties should not be granted a divorece prior to ten
days in the ordinary case if it would not be better for him to take the
case under advisement. He can always do that and hold the matter in
status guo for a reasonable time.

JUDGE KOELSCH: All I can say is that this rule has been an
unwritten rule in the Third District for a good many years. I have an
idea it was done to prevent collusive divorces more than anything
else. The parties come in and agree to have a divorce and the de-
fendant comes in and commits herself or himself to the jurisdiction
of the Court and the divorce is granted at once. It is intended to do
away with that, )

MR. SWANSTROM: The rale in connection with the instructions
submitted in a criminal case. As I understend that, the instruction
is written up by counsel and presented during or at the close of the
trial, and if it is not properly objected 1o by opposing counsel, he is
thereafter forever precluded from raising any objection to the cor-
rectness of that instruetion either on appeal or otherwise. Now who
is there among this aggregation of legal talent who can take a set of
instructions handed to him just as the argument is closed and the
jury are ready to get the case, and maybe a dozen or fiffeen instruc-
tions handed to him by opposing counsel, and check the correctness of
them with any half-way chance of certainty; and if the instructions
should be given by the Court and be held erroneous, does that mean
that he cannot even raise it on appeal?

MR. A. L. MORGAN: May we have the rule?

JUDGE KQELSCH: It is to this effect: That the distriet court
gives opportunity te counsel on either side to have the instructions
and read them over and study them and object to any instruction,
either given by opposing counsel or by the Court on its own motion;
and if he fails to take an exception to any instruction, then he is pre-
cluded from doing se.

MR. A. 1. MORGAN: Would such a rule promuigated by the dis-
iriet judges be binding on the Supreme Court?

JUDGE KOELSCH: They could if they wonld,

MR. A. L. MORGAN: If they pass a rnle to that effect. But as
the matter now stands, I am wondering how much of a conflict we
would get into there in a matter of that kind unless the Supreme Cowrt
does amend its rules. I hope they don’t, but if they, do—

JUDGE KOELSCH: I think you should refer that question to
Judge Givens, who has a proposed bill,
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MR. McCARTY: We used to have the practice in Idaho that you
always had to except to an instruction before you could raise the ob-
jection in the Supreme Couwrt. We would go in then and except to all
of the instructions as soon as they were submitted., Then the legis-

" lature passed a law that relieved us from that and said that all in-

structions are deemed excepted to. Now, apparently we are going
back to where we were with a rule of this kind, so that every attorney
who is defending in a criminal case must at the close of the case
exceépt to all given instructions whether they are right or wrong, so
that he won’t overleok any. My ides is that if an instruction is wrong
in the beginning it is wrong all the time, whether excepted to or not.
It should never be rectified by some attorney who fails to take an ex-
ception to it, and I think we should stay where we are, with instrue-
tions deemed excepted to. Our Supreme Court has gone so far that
if an erroneous instruction is given, unless the defendant offers an
instruction that rectifies it, he is precluded that much. You ean’t make
it right by someone failing to take an exception to it.

MR, GRAHAM: Undoubtedly the adoption of that rule would lead
to just what Mr, McCarty says. Every attorney would take his ob-
jection and exception to each and all instructions to protect his record.

ME. SWANSTROM: Perhaps 1 didn’t make myself clear. Ap-

_Darently in the supgested rule there is no definition of the time or op-

portunity which will be given counsel to except to proposed in-

structions. What is a reasonable time? There is a jury waiting for

the cese, and the Court will simply say, “Here are plaintiff’s instrue-
tions. Look them over and see if you have any objections.” Well,
now, there are very many cases where doing that would take a day
or two or even longer, and others may be perfunctory, but unless the
opportunity to examine and to object to them is rather limited or de-

- fmed, it might be, if I wasn’t sitting weéll with the Judge that partic-

ular day, he would say, “Swanstrom, take ten minutes and look these
over,” and I have had my opportunity to propose and make ohjections,
and I don't find them in that time—am I to be barred on appeal? Per-
haps I don’t comprehend just what is meant by the terma “opportunity

- to examine.”

MR. GRAHAM: The suggestion in regard to instructions will be
referred back to the committee for further consideration and Teport
later,

MR. PAINE: I was going to suggest you get no help at all from
that if the exception iz peneral, and if the purpose of it is that the
defect in it should be specifically pointed out, then Mr. Swanstrom is
right. In the heat of a trial a man gets somewhat tired. It is not fair
to & man to shut out his client to cure a defect in that way because
without any time for consideration he fails to point it out specifically.

JUDGE KOELSCH: As a practical question, I think you are un-
necessarily alarmed. 1 find that counsel generally know the theory of
their case and the law that pertains to it, and if an instruction is of-
fered by the other side, he reads it over and knows then and there
whether he ean agree with you or not and he can point out the reason.

MR, PAINE: Yoy forget the Boise-Payette case in which the




36 IDAHO STATE BAR PROCEEDINGS

distriet judge reversed himself on the ground that he didnt under-
stand his own instrections.

MR. HAWLEY: The Supreme Court held that he did.

JUDGE KOELSCH: It would serve in a good many instances a
good purpose. Judge Morgan called attention to the fact that in 2
certain case the district judge in writing his instructions, in referring
to the parties in two cases that were consolidated For trial, used the
plural in defining contributory negligence and said the plaintiffs were
guilty of contributory negligence; whereas, if that had been called to
the attention of the court he would have seen in'a moment that it
should have been in the singular.

MR. PAINE: Calling it to their attention, that is fine, and give
them a chance to argue. That should have heen dune years ago, but
as & matter of fact the trial judge generally has the tax-payer in mind
more than anything with a long trial and cuts down always on the
attorney and tells him to get in there right now,

JUDGE KOELSCH: That is the purpose of the rule, and like
meany other rules, as Mr. Swanstrom pointed out, it may not be work-
able bhecause of the lack of time, hut that iz the intent and purport
of the rule.

MR, FRANK RYAN: Another situation happens quite frequently
with all of us in practice. A client employs one attorney in the district
court and he is not satisfied, aud justly, with that attorney’s handling
of the case, and he will employ another attorney on appeal and that
attorney readily sees errors in these instructions that did not occur
to the attorney in the district court. Is it right that the client who
was so unfortunate as to have an at{orney that didn’t see these defects
be pracluded then? I think the practice is better just as it is.

MR. HEANSON: I practice in western Montana, and over there
we had a rule that the instructions are always settled by the court;
the instructions are read and then they make objections. I tried &
case over 2t Missoula about a month age in which 87 were shot at me
at the close of the trial, questions which could not be or had not been
anticipated by either side, several novel questions of law that went to
the Supreme Court, which one side or the other was not prepared to
argue at that time. It seems to me in many instances it would result
in covering the ground and taking exceptions to all instructions that
might be erroneous. While we don't desire to lead a court into error,
we are also trying to see that the litigant gets a fair sbake. If he
happens to pick a poor lawyer, that cannot be charged to the litigant;
he cannot help it; he takes it for granted when I get my license, or
any other man, we are qualified to practice law. Sometimes we are,
and sometimes we are not, but the litigant should not be penalized.

JUDGE KOELSCH: I am sure you can sympathize with the sit-
uation of the district judge, because very seldom will the attorneys
submit instructions for inspection of the court until he has to. If the
judge Tefuses to give some, that ig errvor, and if he gives some that
are wrong, he is in error. He has to study them, and the time is just
too short.

MR. PAINE: That is where you are wrong. You can send the
jury out and tell them you will not give them instructions until you
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are sure you are right, if it takes a week. But that is what the trial
judge will not do. He takes into consideration that the case has
reached its end and ha wants to see his wife or haby that night and
doesn’t take time and gives these instructions. Now, we lawyers aré
sbsolutely up against it. If the judge says, “You go ahead right now,”
we have to go; and you don't have to, and in my judgment you should-
o't do it. You should try to be right before you give instruetions.
JUSTICE MORGAN: It would be the better rule for the tax-payer
Mr. Paine, if I am not mistaken, if you determine error in these in-
structions before they are given, or before it goes to the Supreme
Court. The most expensive place I know of, to the tax-payer and to
the litigant, is to correct it in the Supreme Court. The purpose of this
rule, whether it is workable or not, is to require the distriet judge in
cases where he entertains any doubt as to the law of the case to call
counsel before him and, as Mr. Hanson has pointed out, as they do in
Montana, go over these instructions one at & time; if you have ohjec-
tions to them, urge it them, or, if you don't, let’s have a rle in the
Supreme Court that if the record discloses that you have been given
an opportunity to be heard and have not objected, that your objection
enmmot be urged before the Supreme Court on appeal. It doesn’t con-
template that these will thrown at you or that you will be taken ad-

vantage of or hurried beyond your ability to discharge your duties,

but it does contemplate that some time you are going to make up
your mind whether you have an objection to that instruetion or not,
and. thet should be before the instruetion is given, T am familiar with
tuite a number of casez that have come before the Supreme Court
where error has crept in requiring reversal where there wasn’t any
occagion for appeal at ali if the matter had been brought to the at-
tention of the court when the instructions were given. It is an ex-
pensive thing to spend a full day giving these instructions, but it is
not 5o expensive as going fo the Supreme Court or trying the case
over, :

MR. A. L. MORGAN: It seems to me that the courts are trying
to protect themselves rather than trying to protect the fellow who bas
something at stake in the lawsuit. It doesn’t make any difference
whether the mistake is made by reason of the attorney or by reason
of the distriet court. The client should not be precluded from going
to the Supreme Court to have that error corrected. Now, the difficulty
with this rule is that if 1 inadvertently, having had an opportunity to
gean these imstructions, have overlooked something, then I am abso-
lutely precluded and my client is precluded from raising the guestion
in the Supreme Court. Now, that is not right. Now, what is the Su-
preme Court for but to correct these errors? And, if an error is made,
jrrespective of how it happens to be made, I say you should not be
precluded hy some ignorant attorney, or by something unforseen, I
will say this that in the majority of instances the errors of the trial
court in the mstructions given have become apparent to me days and
days.after the case was closed.

JUSTICE MORGAN; Isn't it the remarkable thing that they ever
become apparent to you?

MR. A. L. MORGAN: I will say the remarkable thing is that
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after they have become apparent to me, half of the time I cannot con-
vince the court or make them see it.

MR. PAINE: BSince we have had Morgar vs. Morgan, I think I
ought to be content, but I do want Judge Morgan to understand me,
that I am in favor of the trial court having the benefit of criticisms
and opinions of counsel, and I am complaining that the court does not
take the necessary length of time to get the help that he is entitled
to, but there isn't anybody that knows 21l the law of the case, the
judges included, if it be a difficult and complex or conflicting case.
Take any of your constitutional questions; they are decided by the
Supreme Court, five to four, Am I a damn fool if in ome of thiz sort
of cases a bunch of instructions is handed to me and I cannot point
out to you a specific objection in ten or fifteen minutes or an hour’s
time that I might a week afterwards, and should the Supreme Court
be restrained from granking justice to my client? Call counsel in 2nd
submit the instruetions to both sides, invite an argument, get all the
help you can, and then the trial judge will assume the responsibility
and not pess it over to the poor fellow who in some cases can’t get a
lawyer who knows as much as God Almighty, and God Almighty is
the only one that knows what the decision should be.

MR. HAWLEY: Which is it? Do you have to make an objection
or do you have to take an exception?

JUDGE KOELSCH: Make an chjection to every instruction.

MR. HAWLEY: I want to participate in this Roman holiday that
the members of the Bar are having at the expense of the bench. T sug-
gest that we adopt the federal rule. The federal rule requires that as
the instructions are given you have fo get up and give your specifie
objections right on the spur of the moment,

JUSTICE MORGAN: The purpose is to give counsel ample op-
portunity to advise himself, if such a thing be possible, and if then he
fails to object, he can’t go out and find out from one of his neighbors
and 2t the suggestion of somebody else raise the question thereafter.
It requires him to be fair to the district judge and also would require
the district judge to he fair to him.

MR. HAWLEY: The fact is that the district judge dont want
you fo take up his time in arguing instructions. You hand in a bunch
of instructions and the district judge will go over them. Then if he
wants you to argue any especial instruction, he should call you in.

JUSTICE MORGAN: Yes.

ME. HAWLEY: But if both sides present instructions and say
they want to ergue them, you get very unpopular with the judge,

JUSTICE MORGAN: Unless the distriet judge gives you the op-
portunity to argue and make a record on it and you are fully advised,
you are not precluded from presenting the objection to the Supreme
Court.

MR. HAWLEY: We had this rule in one of the Distriet Courts
years ago. A, F. James of Gooding and mys=elf were on opposite sides,
and the judge called on the attorneys for a discussion of our instruc-
tions, about 26 in number on each side, and gpent all the morning and
most of the afternoon listening to the argument that we made, and
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after hearing the argument he did the very fair thing—he gave every
instruetion that either one of us asked for.

MR. GRAHAM: I am rather inclined to think the district judge
may exercise the right to call on the attorneys for suggestions on the
question of instructions, but not to penalize them if they don’t happen
to point out some particular error, because during the trial of the
cage lots of questions arise which the attorney has mot had time to
brief. The matter will be referred back to the judicial section for
further consideration and later report.

JUDGE KOELSCH: I want to report that the judicial section also
discussed certain proposed changes in criminal law, both substantive
and procedural law, and after we had discussed them and practically
ungnimously agreed upon them some one suggested that report should
be made and that matter referred to the Bar as a whole here today,
and somebody got up and said, “Don't do that, because we want to
muke these changes and we want the legislature to pass the proper
act to accomplish it, and if you let the Bar endorse it they will surely
kill it.” After the experience with the rules I have had just now, I
think it is wise not to report what they agreed upon,

MR. GRAHAM: Is your committes ready to report, Mr. Bistline?

~ MR. BISTLINE: Yes. We have prepared two proposed amend-
“ments on thiz matter of practising in another district.

MR. GRAHAM: Just read the rules as amended,

MR. BISTLINE: This will be Section 10. “Rules and Regulations.
The Association is empowered to adopt such rules and regulations as
it shall see fit, including a minimum fee schedule as hereinafter de-
fined, to fix and preseribe penalties for the violation thereof and the
machinery for the enforcement thereof not incongistent with the rules
and regulations of the Supreme Court, and of the Board of Commis-

_ sioners of the State Bar.”

I will not read the second paragraph, defining the minimum fee
gehedule, but the following will be added at the end:

“Any fee achedule and amendments thereto adopted by this
Association ghall not become effective until filed with the Secre-
tary of the Idaho State Bar, and the secretary of this Associa-
tion shall send & eopy of any fee schedule and amendments there-
to to the secretaries of all other Distriet Associations.”

“Al rules and regulations adopted by this Association shall
be binding upon all members of the Idaho State Bar who per-
form legal services of any kind within the territorial boundaries
of this Association.” ’

MR. GRAHAM: Are there any further suggestions in regard to
~this amendment? If not, we will now vote upon the motion as to the
:adoption of the report. All those in favor of the adoption of the re-
ort signify by saying “Aye.” Those opposed “No.” The “Ayes” pre-
ail, It is so ordered.

:Mr, Eberle had a subject assigned to him. “Practice and Compen-
tion of Idaho Lawyers—Report of Survey—J, L. Eberle,”

MR. GRIFFIN: 1 have it.

MR. GRAHAM: Will you read the report
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REPORT OF SURVEY COMMITTEE

At the request of the Bar Commigsion, the Survey Committee
proceeded to obtain additional data te supplement and bring up to
date its report of last year, A questionaire was mailed to every mem-
ber of the Idaho State Bar., Although every member was urged to
cooperate to the end that the survey might be helpful to the Bar, only
15 per cent of the members of the Bar responded.

Assuming that those who returned their questionnaires represent
a fair eross-section of the Bar, the data furnished by them shows that
receipts from professional services in 1935 exceeded those in 1934
by an average of 10 per cent, It also appears that 22 per cent of the
total reveres of those responding came from governmental agencies.
Manifestly, had every member of the Bar cooperated, a most helpful
analyeis and report could bave been made.

Recourse was again had te the records of tbe Commissioner of
Finance, Income Tax Division. These records show that 30.53 per cent
of the Bar filed income tax returns showing an income of 32000 ox
over. Qut of the remaining 370 members of the Bar only 60 filed re-
turns showing income of $2000 or less. 10.6 per cent of the bar filed
income tax returns showing $4000 or over. 7.69 per cent of the Bar
filed income tax returns showing an income from $3000 to $4000. These
figurep were all taken from that portion of the returns showing in-
come from professional services. Accordingly, although the question-
naires showed an average increase in 1935 over 1934, it would seem
that approximately 70 per cent of the Bar may be said to have had an
income from professional services in 1935 of less than $2000. In these
figures we have not taken into consideration employment of members
of the Bar by governmental agencies, If we were to eliminate those
thus employed, we would have approximately 8.5 per cent of the Bar
with an income of over 34000 and 6 per cent of the Bar with an in-
come of between $3000 and $4000,

The suggestions and comments made by those responding to our
request may be summarized as follows:

1. Closer cooperation is vital to improvement of the condition of
lawyers.

2, Minimum fee schedules should be adopted and lived up to.

3. Overhead in 1935 showed increase.

4. Trial work shows an increage.

5. Lawyers will eventually cease giving away all their services.

6. Lawyers should appreciate more that they are officers of the

7. Take the government out of the law practice.

8. BState Bar Commission eontinue its efforts to strengthen the
organization and obtain the support of the entire Bar.

Manifestly, without complete data, an aceurate report can not he
given, The Survey Committee has endeavored to analyze such data
as it could obtain. We recommend that this work be continued and
that questionnaires again he sent to the Bar at the end of 1936. We
believe that the entire Bar will in time appreciate the helpfulness of

iDAHO STATE BAR PROCEEDINGS 41

such complete data, which cannot be obtained except with the coopera-
tion of every member.
Respectfully submitted,

SURVEY COMMITTEE.

MR. PAINE: What do you mean by taking the government out
of the law business?

MR. GRIFFIN: I take it, from having talked to Mr. Eberle, that
be refers to these government agencies, For instance, all abstract ex-
aminations are going into the government loan agencies, taken out of
the field of private practice and going into the government offices, I
presume that is the class of thing that he refers to.

MR, GRAHAM: The report will be received and placed on file
The next subjeet is “Idaho Declaratory Judgments.,” Prof. Bert. Hop-
kins, of the University of Idaho Law School. Prof. Hopkins, we will
now hear from you.

Mr. Chairman, and Gentlemen of the Idaho State Bar:

The declaratory judgment, which your program committee has
asked me to discuss, is without doubt the most far reaching procedural
reform which hag attained general adoption in this country since the
promulgation of the codes of civil procedure in the latter half of the
nineteenth century. It is rather significant, I think, that this proce-
dural institution should have been adopted by the Idaho Legislature in
19887 without, apparently, having received the discussion and attention
from members of the Bar which it deserves. I do not know who spon-
sored the bill in the Idaho Legislature, but it does appear that in other
jurisdictions the insurance company lobbyists have played an import-
ant part in gecuring the adoption of declaratory judgment legislation.
Whatever its source in Idaho, it has aroused a somewhat belated in-
terest among the members of the Idzho Bar. It is my purpose this
afternoon to present, very briefly, the general purpose, something of
the history, the scope and limitations, of the declaratory judgment
procedure, with the hope that my remarks may stimulate some dis-
cussion of the matter.

History.

Before gketcbing the history of the declaratory judgment, it might
be well to note than an excellent and exhaustive aceount of the history
and comparative law relating to this subject is now available in Chap-
ter VI of Professor Borchard’s recent book on Declaratory Judgments.

According to the legal historians, this procedural device originated
in the classical Roman law, and later was adopted by and is still ex-
tensively used in many European and Spanish-American countries.
The connecting link between the Continental declaratory judgment
and modern English law is to be found in the law of Scotland. More
then four centuries ago, declaratory procedure appeared in the Scot-
“tish law, where it has been extensively used, and in the nineteenth

century found its way into English practice. Agitation in England

[daho, 8. L., 1983, ch. 70. (The Uniform Declaratory Judgment Aect,
- with very minor changes.)
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for the adoption of the Scottish practice was begun by Lord Brougham
in 1828, After introducing several bills into Parliament, he was finally
successful in securing partial adoption by legislation in 1850, 1852,
and 18582, The power under this legislation was narrowly construed
by the courts, so that no declarations were made in cases where there
was no right to consequential relief.3 This defeated the prime pur-
pose of the reform, namely, to provide a means of preventive justice
by securing judicial relief from peril and insecurity, and to establish
and declare existing rights and other legal relations when they are
challenged and uncertain, even though no act hes been done which
could be charged as a “wrong” in the traditional sense. This deficiency
was corrected by rule of court in 1883, and the foundation was laid
for the developments of the Twentieth century in this country.

The legislative movement spread rapidly throughout the United
States, after 1918, following the publication of a number of articles in
legal periodicals urging the reform.# The Uniform Declaratory
Judgments Act was approved by the National Conference of Commis-
sions on Uniform State Laws in 1922,5 and has since been adopted
in twenty-five jurisdictions.f ‘Several states not adopting the uni-
form act have enacted statutes authorizing the courts to render judg-
ments,” and the Federal Declaratory Judgments Act went into effect
on June 14, 1934.8

This record of extensive legislative adoption, and also the thous-
ands of cases here and abroad in which the declaratory practice has
demonstrated its social utility, will indicate that the Declaratory
Judgment is to become an important and permenent part of our juris-
prudence. As such it deserves careful attention from the Fudges and
Lawyers of Idahe during its early mse in order that its benefits may
be fully secured to the pecple of the state, and at the same time pos-
sible pitfalls of its use avoided,

Distinctive Characteristics, Scope and Limitations,

The nature and characteristics of the action for a declaratory jude-
ment were well set out by the Pennsylvania Supreme Court in an
opinion upholding the constitutionality of the Uniform Act which was
adopied in that state in 1923. The court said, in part:9

“The distinctive characteristics of the declaratory judgment is that
the declaration stands by itself; that is to sz2y, no execatory process
follows as of course. Again, in order to obtain a declaration, it is not
required that an actual wrong should have been done, such as would
give Tise to an action for damages, and no wrong deed need be im-

2 Borchard, Declaratory Judgments, page 240 (1934)..

3 Borchard, op. cit. supra, page 242.

4 See Borchard, op. cit. supra, page 245, note 223 for list of citations
on these articles,

59 U. L. A, 120,

8 Reports of Am. Bar Association, Vol. 60, page 733 (1935).

7 Borchard, op. cit, supra, page 245.

& Judicial Code, Section 274d; 28 U. 8. C. A., section 400,

? Petition of Kariher, 284 Pa. 455, 131 A. 265 (1925).
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mediately threatened, such as would be the proper basis for an in-
junction. In other words, a “cause of action,” in the sense in which
that term is ordinarily used, is not essential to the assumption of
jurisdiction in this form of procedure. It is upon these characteristics
of the declaratory judgment that the chief constitutional attacks have
been based; its opponents contending the declaration of legal rights
and obligations contemplated by the act represent the exercise of &
nonjudicial duty, which the. Legislature can not place on the courts,
and that, since such declarations do mot necessarily ineclude the right
to execwtion, they are not judgments at all, but represent the mere
giving of advice, rather than the adjudication of controversies; further,
than an occasion for judicial action cannot properly arise until some
claim is made that an actual wrong has been done or is imminent;
and, finally, that the whole idea of the declaratory judgment is an un-
allowable innovation.

In considering these contentions, it may first be noted that there
are many judgments under present forms which do not inelude the
* right to execution, except possibly for costs, and the present declara-
‘tory judgment practice involves an award as to costs (see section 10
of the act); moreover, under the act before us (section 8), execution,
‘or“further relief,” based on a declaratory judgment, may be had
where appropriate, and allowed by the court. Next, it may be noted
that, sinee the numerous jurisdictions enjoying this practice all hold
that-a real controversy must exist, that moot cases will not be con-
‘gidered, and that declaratory judgments are res judicata of the points
volved, such judgments cannot properly be held merely advisory;
and that there can be proper occasion for Judlmal action before the
infliction of injury or its immediate threat, iy sufficiently shown, for
xample, by the quia timet action, which lay before damage and with-
ut imminent danger thereof. Finally, it should be gbserved that an
act like the present one, which permits only a more general use of &
evice heretofore existing in our practice, cannot be held to be an un-
#llowable innovation in Pennsylvania; for we in this state have long
Tésorted to the declaratory judgment in many fields, though not call-
ing it by that name,”

. The court then pointed out a number of situations in which the
gourts have long made declarations of legal rights without including a
right to execution, the most common of which is the action to quiet
e, and continued:

“No doubt many other instances could be cited where we in Penn-
ylvahia are today, and have been for many years, indulging in de-
atory judgments; the present legislation simply makes that prac-
ce more extensive. When this latter fact is realized, the whole argu-
ent:.as to the act’s tmposing on the courts somethlng new, in the na-
of a nonjudicial function, fails; for the statute before us merely
gerits the extension of a long and well established judicial funection,
viously enjoyed to a considerable extent in this state, of dec]armg
aw which governs a given condition of facts #o as to make the
niroversy covered by these facts res judicata, albeit in many cases
écution may be called for, and even though the action was start-
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ed hefore damages WweTe actua]ly inflicted or before danger thereof
was imminent.” ‘

From these quotations it will readily appear that the recent ex-
tensive legislation authorizing declaratory judgments has not brought
to American jurisprudence a totally new and unfamiliar procedural
device, but rather it has authorized and encouraged the wider use of
judicial powers well known and commeonly used within restricted fields.
In fact, the modifications of existing proeedure necessary to broaden
the scope of the declaration and to permit declarations of right with-
out necessity of coercive relief throughout the law, were so slight that
they were accomplished in England by Rule of Court,0 rather than
by resort to Parliament. Qrder 25, rule 5, of the Supreme Court Rules
of 1883, provided: “No action or proceeding shall be open to objection,
on the ground that & merely declaratory judgment or order is sought
thereby, and the court may make binding declarations of rights
whether any consequential relief is or could be claimed, or not.” This
rule beeame the basis for similar court rules or legislation in most of
the British Dominions, and it later became the basis for most of the
legislation in this country, including Section 1 of the Uniform Act,
adopted in Idaho.#t

Onee it is realized that a declaratory judgment differs from any
other judgment primarily in that it does not look to coercive relief, it
will be obvious that the courts of Idaho, as well as all other Anglo-
American courts have long been accustomed to render such judgments,
in limited fields, All that is provided by the new legislation is a new
name for such judgments, and a broadening of the field of their use-
fulness. Courts of Equity long since evolved the now familiar practice
of quieting title to real property by decree. Insofar as such decrees
do not demand the destruction of instruments, or other specific relief,
they are, in effect, purely declaratory, In the field of statuz we are
also familiar with actions for the declaration of the nullity of void
marriages. Unlike divorce decrees, these decrees of nullity of mar-
riage do not profess to change the legal relations of the parties, but
merely to declare judicially the existing relations on the basiz of ex-
isting faets. Such proceedings are provided for in Title 21 of the
Idahe Code, Chapter b. Declarations of this kind should be distin-
guished from decrees of diverce, adoption, foreclosure, appointment
of guardians, etc., for while the latber judgments may not look to ex-
ecution; they are not merely declaratory, hut are investitive, in the
sense that they create new legal relations between parties rather than
merely declare existing relations,

The equitable bill of interpleader by a stakeholder is also a familiar
example of an action looking to a declaratory judgment. So too are
variouy statutory actions, permitted to trustees for securing a determi-
nation of their duties, or for the construction of wills, or for the vali-
dation of bonds by irrigation distriets. It might be of interest to mote
in paseing that the Idaho Legislature authorized as early as 1903, a
proceeding to obtain judieial confirmation of the organization proceed-

70 Statutory Rules and Orders, 54.
11 Borchard, Declaratory Judgments, page 81 (1934}.
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higs of irrigation districts, and their izsuance of honds, whether such
bonds are sold at the time of commencing action or not. These pro-
ceedings, declaratory in nature, were before the Supreme Court in
1905 in Nempa Irr. Dist. v. Brose,12 litigation probably familiar to
many of you. In addition to the above examples, the procedure de-
veloped by our western courts for the adjudication of water rights
would seem to be declaratory in nature, at least where execution by
water masters is not looked to.

The question which readily suggests itself, is why legislation was
necessary to expand into general use a long recognized and useful
judicial device. The truth is that the limits of the Equitable bill quia
timet were never clearly defined, and the expangive powers of Equity,
once so characteristic of its jurisdiction, have long been nearly as
rigidly confined as the Common Law itself. While England could
“broaden the scope of the declaratory judgment merely by rule of court,
it iz probably characteristic of us in America to rely upon the leg'lsla-
ture for the exercise of powers which have long been within the es-
$ablished “inherent powers” of 4 commeon law court.
" Anéther distinetive characteristic of the declaratery judgment, re-
ferred to by the Pennsylvania court, in the above quotation, is that
“in order to obtain a declaration, it is not required tbat an actual
wrong should have been done, such as would give rise to an action for
" damages, and no wrong need be immediately threstened, such as
would he the proper basis for an injunction. In other words, a ‘cause
of action,’ in the sense in which that term is ordinarily used, is not
esgential to the assumption of jurisdiction in this form of procedure.”
‘It is this characteristic which has led to most of the confusion in our
“thinking about declaratory judgments. So accustomed is the Com-
mon Law lawyer to regard the perpetration of an actual ‘“wrong” as
ecessary in order to invoke the aid of the courts that he has difficulty
wsuallzmg a cause of action without such “wrong.” Even the equity
er is inclined to look for an immediately threatened wrong in
er to invoke the restraining power of the Chancellor. In fact, the
gion of a WIong, or an immediately threatened wrong in every
cause of action is maccurate, and the more critical students of pro-
edure have long since pointed out the error. Judge Phillips, in his
jook on Code Pleading published in 1896, took pains to point out the
istinction between the remedial right the litigant has when a wrong
% been committed, and the cause of action, He wrote:18 “Primarily,
etion is not for the redress of prevention of a wrong; it is a pro-
ing to protect a right. The basis of every action is, & right in the
laintiff; and the purpose of the action is, primarily, to preserve such
t. Subservient to this primary object of the action, is compensa-
on: for infringement of the right.”
In many actions, familiar to all of us, such ag actions for partition,
declare & marriage void, to quiet title or to remove a cloud, and
y-others, there is in fact no wrong at all. Professor Borchard has

Idaho 474.{1905).
B8, iCode 'Pleading, page 28 (1896).
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pointed out?4 that in such cases the oceasion of the state’s interference
through the judicial power is not actual wrong, “but the denial or dis-
pute of his right, placing him in danger or jecpardy and causing him
detriment or prejudice, under such circumstances that the plaintiff
mey properly invoke the court's protection o re-establish, safeguard,
and declare his right, and thus restore the social order.”

Thus, although courts have long recognized causes of action n
which no “wrong” is charged, it is equally clear that legislation broad-
ening the scope of declaratory relief will make justifiable many con-
{roversies which heretofore could not be litigated at all. For example,
the parties to a contract may get into a dispute concerning the seope
of their respective duties under it. It is not unusual to find contracts
so inartfully drawn that judicial construction of their meaning ulti-
mately become necessary. Under our traditional procedure this Jjudi-
cial construction can only be had after one party has acted upon his
own interpretation of his rights, and has committed what the other
party considers a breach. This often results in further protective con-
duct on the part of the other contractor, such as notice of termination,
notice of forfeiture, refusal of further performance, ete. which may
completely shatter the harmonious economic relation between the
parties and result in losses to all concerned. These losses can be and
are being avoided by the uwse of the declaratory judgment procedure
whereby the single key issue of the true meaning of the disputed
clauses may be framed in adversary pleadings, argued by counsel, and
submitted to the court for judgment-—without any breach having taken
place. Either party may become the plaintiff, and serve the other with
process in the usual way. That such a proceeding is contemplated by
the Act is perfectly clear from Sec. 3, which provides: “A contract
may be construed either before or after there has been a breach there-
of.”13 In an economy where long term contracts, leages, trust instru-
ments, ete. are so common, the stabilizing effect of such a procedure
may be a higbly beneficial influence. It is one of the leading claims
made for the Declaratory Judgment by its advocates,

But what does all this do to our traditional concept of a “cause of
action”? It merely means that the concept must be enlarged to in-
clude cases where declaratory relief is proper but where a traditional
action would have been considered premature, as well as those in
which s proceeding looking to coercive relief eould have been brought.
In the latter type of case, the plaintiff has his option whether to
pursue his coercive Temedy or to rely upon the milder declaration. In
many cases, particularly thoge brought to test the validity of a statute
or of some Administrative action, the mere declaration is sufficient to
insure observance of the law by public officials, without resort to the
injunction. The wide use today of the injunction in this type of fest
cage seems to be an abuse of the equitable powers of the courts. The
application for injunction is merely a sereen behind which to get the
controversy before a court for adjudication, What is really sought is
the adjudication rather than the coercive relief. The declaratory pro-

14 Borchard, Declaratory Judgments, page 3 (1934).
15 Idaho 8. L, 1933, ch. 70, section 3,
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ré, the remedies are not mutually exclusive, and often a
8’ declaration is combined with a prayer for injunction,
y ‘or other coercive relief.76 The advantage of the combined
prayer-is that in ease injunction should be denied for some traditional
tich as no showing of inadequacy of legal remedy or no show-
irreparable injury, the declaration may be issued nevertheless,
y 'o'ftlen terminate the controversy.17
'_rtai'n other important characteristics of the Uniferm Aect adopt-
d daho showld be noted. Section 1 provides in part, “The declara-
1‘may be either affirmative or negative.in form_ and effect, and such
declaratmns shall have force and effect of a ﬁna] Judg-ment or
"This prov:s:on insofar as it authorizes a desree négative in
&8s probably intended by the draftsman of the Uniform Act to

owers, and othe1 legal relations. An unfounded demand by a
_may_undopbted!y result in as much peril to the alleged debtor’s
scurity and tranquility as would a cloud upon the title to his
; thus, it often happens that such debtor, instead of waiting
sted, institutes the action himself for the clarification of his
lationis, One celebrated case of this kind appeared in the Eng-

sued the defendant for a judgment to the effect that plaintiff
! er no duty to pay back money demanded by the defendant,
ney had been pald over under an assumption that certam

bd after some hestitation concernmg who had the cause of action.
probably the desire to make it clear that judicial relief against
d demdnds was contemplated by the Act, which led to the
n therein of provision for negative decrees. Professor Borchard
QLDraftsman of both the Uniform Act and of the Federal Act.
hé wrote his book on Declaratory Judgments, the courts of Eng-
nd the British Dominions, as well as courts in this country, had
en_ough_use of the negative declaration so that he was able to
. it is believed clear today that relief from an unjust claim

ages cited, Borchard op. cit. supra, page 162 et seq.

or example, Ufa Films v. Ufa Eastern Division Distribution,
8., 134 Misc. Rep. 129, 234 N. Y. 8. 147 (1929). (Dispute over
eanmg of film distribution contract; declaration granted;
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gives the plaintiff a sufficient legal interest in a judgment and hence
a ‘cause of action’ in the technical sense, An action is equally justi-
ciable whether it is initiated by the creditor, who sues on his claim,
or by the debtor, who maintains that the creditor has no just clajim
upon him, as alleged.” Perhaps it was this assurance that the matter
was settled which led the author, when he drafted the Federal Act, to
omit any specific reference to negative decrees, It was provided: “In
cases of actual controverzy . . . the courts of the United States shall
have power upon petition, declaration, complaint, or other appropriate
pleadings to declare Tights and other legal relations of any interested
party petitioning for such declaration ... " It was probably thought
to be clear that immunity from a claimed lability ie a “legal relation®”
within the wording of the Federal Act. In a case decided a few weeks
ago by Federal District Judge Otis of Missouri it was held otherwige.20
The plaintiff was an Insurance Company which had iesmed an accident
policy to one Foulke, While the policy was in force Foultke died, and
his widow and beneficiary claimed the death was accidental, and that
the company should pay. The Company denjed that death was acei-
dental, denied liability, and brought an action under the Federal Act
to have the validity of the claim determined. Judge Otis sustained a
demurrer to the complaint on the ground that immunity from asserted
claime is not a right or legal relation of the plaintiff within the Act.
The Judge also remarked that Counsel had cited no authority support-
ing the theory of the petition. Now it seems to me that Counsel for
the Insurance (Company might well have found ample authority for
the action in the cages cited and discussed by Borchard in his exhaust-
ive hook published two years ago. Az a matter of faet, a Federal Dis-
trict Judge in Texas has sustained a very similar action under the
Tederal Act just a few weeks before Judge Otis’s decision21 In that
case an Ohio casualty insurance company brought an action under the
Federal Act for a declaration relieving it from lability for injuries
to Texas residents from operation of an automobile which was insured
by the pleintiff company. Judge Kennerly not only sustained the valid-
ity of the Act, but also the propriety of the action under the circum-
stances.

It would seem that if the insurance companies find the declaratory
proceedure useful in disposing of doubtful claims without waiting to
be sued on them, that is, if they wish to bring on the fight and get a
judicial determination at a time when their evidence is available to
defeat the claims, they should follow up their legislative program
with more eareful court work so as to prevent the unfortunate results
of the Missouri situation above referred to.

- Tt should not be concluded, however, that the declaratory procedure
is beneficial alone to Insurance companies. The policyholders too, have
found it useful. For example, in a case before the California Supreme
Court in 1931,22 it appeared that the Plaintiff had paid a premium on
his fire insurance policy to an agent of the Company who had subse-

20 Columbia Nat. Life Ins. Co. v. Foulke, 13 . Supp. 350 (1936).
21 Ohio Casualty Ins. Co. v. Plummer, 13 F. Supp. 169 (1935).
22 Frasch v, London and Lancashire Fire Ins. Co., 2 P. {2d) 147 (1931).
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quently converted the premium and had absconded. The Company
denied that it was bound. The question, of course, turned on the os-
. tensible authority of the agent. Plaintiff established his claim by use
‘ of the declaratory procedure. The advantage of such procedure would
seem to be that Plaintiff need not wait until loss by fire to find out
whether he is covered by his policy.

A slight modification of the Uniform Act was made in Section 2 as
adopted in Idaho. In authorizing declaratory construction of deeds,
wills, statutes, contracts etc, it was made clear that oral contracts
were included. Thia precaution was probably inspired by uncertainty
which had arisen elsewhere under the Uniform Act.23

‘While the declaratory procedure will probably find its greatest use-
Tulness where the facts are agreed upon, or where only simple dis-
putes of fact are involved, section 9 makes it clear that such” issues

"may be tried in the same manner as such issues are determinéd in
* -other proceedings. The Federal Act also expressly preserves the right '
to jury trial, probably out of caution to prevent constitutional attacks
that score.
‘Section 11 of the Idaho Act adopts the liberal Equity rule as to
joinder of parties, and provides that no declaration shall prejudice the
rlg'hts of persons not parties to the proceeding.

'S_e_t_:tion 8 provides for further relief based on a declaratory J'udé—
ient or decree whenever necessary or proper.
e An important limitation upon the scope of the Act is contained in
Section 6, which provides that: “The court may refuse to render or
énter. a declaratory judgment or decree wiere sweirJudwimeit or de-
gree,-if rendered or entered, would not terminabe the-uneertainty or
k-"ﬁ'" §y giving rise to the Eg@gg@ip_gn:’i This grant of diseretith

riS Wi séem to be ample protection against iil-founded

: : LSWIESTTE Eertainly - was vieves intended that
‘or careless Attorneys with complicated ca$és should be allowed
hrow an unorgafized set of Tacts into the Jap of the Judge and
7 Ad determine as well as to_decide the issues. The
Ty, pledding and other procedural technique must be used with
ze, whether a declaration alone is sought or whether coereive
ne is asked for, or whether the two are combined. The j

oiild:bo. as clearly framed and can be as exhaustively arpusi-in a
H_clarg.tory‘_case ag in any other. In addition, the party SecHing 4
ration. should come prepared to show the court that the declaya-

gought will serve its intended purpose of terminating the con-

er. the Act, only courts of record, within their respective juris-
are granted the declaratory power. The usual jurisdictional
ents, of course, must be complied with. The case brought for
W@iﬂn.mst present an actual controversy Easgd upon exiat; "\,
fachs, not a moot oF hypothetical case or one in which the parties KEve"
mote or speculative interest.?4 The declaration must also be

rd, op. cit. supra, page 409.
rd, op. cit. supra, page 36 et seq,
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distinguished from advisory opinions,25 which aTe authorized by Con-

gtitution in some states, notably Massachusetts. The giving of an
advisory opinion at the request of the legislative or administrative de-
partments of the government is not a judicial function at all. It does
not purport to be a binding adjudication of rights between adverse
litigants. Tt compares roughly and more nearly with the advisory
function usually imposed upon the Attorney General.

Tt seeme to have been a tendency to confuse the declaratory judg-
ment with advisory opinions or moot cases which led the Michigan
Supreme Court in 1920 to declare the legislation unconstitutional as
jmposing a non-judicial function upon the courts.26 Since that time
the question has been repeatedly raised, and consistently the decisions
have heen in favor of the validity of the Acts.2? Even the Michigan
court has changed its position.

It should hardly be necessary to add that not only should an actual
FTOVETsy § dverse interests shguld be made to
appear in the pleading. Our Suprems Court has made this point suffi-
‘ently clear in State v. State Board of Education?8 in which the
court assumed jurisdiction of an appeal in a declaratory judgment
proceeding because of the public importance of the matter, in spite
of the fact that the parties both urged the same conclusion.

One other important limitation upon the scope of the Act should be
pointed out. If the declaratory procedure is to perform its prevenitve
function of settling disputes at their inception rather than requiring
them to develop into full-blown legal battles leading to protracted
litigation, the courts must entertain suits, as I have pointed out above,
which under our traditional procedure wonld be deemed premature.
{On the otber hand, the parties can not rely on speculative or con-
tingent facts which may or may not take place. Just where the line
' should be drawn is difficalt to state in general terms. Tt should, I
think, be left to that sound discretion of the Court under Section 6 to
entertain such suits only when satisfied that the judgment will termi-
b nate the controversy.

Within these limitztions, if sympathetically handled by our Courts
and by the members of the Bar, the declaratory judgment procedure
should attain the high purpose set for it by Section 12 of the Act
which reads: “This Act is declared to be remedial; its purpose is to
settle and afford relief from uncertainty and insecurity with respect
to rights, status and other legal relations, and is to be liberally con-
strued and administered.”

JUSTTICE AILSHIE: In what respect does the federal act differ
from the Uniform Act?

PROFESSOR HOPKINS: I take it that the scope was intended
to be exactly the same. The wording is very different. The federal

25 Borchard, op. cit. supra, page 50

2 Anway v. Grand Rapids Ry. Co, 211 Mick. 592, 179 N. W. 350
(1920).

27 For elaborate discussion of the cases, see Borchard, op. cit. supre
Ch. VIL

28 State v. State Board of Education, 52 P. (2d) 141 (Edaho 1935).
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act is in three short sections ‘while the Uniform Act is in seventeen.
The firgt gection of the federal act, which in broad terms authorizes
declarations, has in it the words “in cases of actual controversy.” Pre-
sum'ably Borehard inserted them in the act to foreclose the idea that
advigory opinions were authorized, and thus aveid constitutional at-
tack. Section I of the Uniform Act likewise authorizes declarations in
broad terms, but it is followed by sections 2, 8, and 4 which make

specific reference to various types of cases contemplated under the

Act. Then there is an added section in the Uniform Act saying that
these specifie cases referred to in sections 2, 3, and 4 are not to be
deemed exclusive, but section 1 is to be given its broad scope. No

specification is placed in the federal act. All of that is accomplished

by saying mothing in the federal act, and leaving it to be covered by

the broad section 1. In both acts there iz specific reference to a right
‘tor a jury trial, and to supplemental relief based on a declaration. The

Uniferm Act alone makes specific reference to Costs and to Parties.

Then, of course, there is a certain amount of paraphenalia that goes

with the Uniform Act that was unnecessary in the federal act with

‘rggard to construction, uniformity of interpretation, and so on.

) 'MR. HAWLEY: A suit brought in a state court may be removed

o the federal court under the same rules as any controversy in an

rdinary suit?

b PROEESSOR HOPKINS: I should say removal can be had under

¢ same cireumstances that it now can be had. There is nothing in

‘act-to enlarge or restrict federal jurisdiction. You still have your

tiform Act was adopted without change in many jurisdictions in the
208, and then subsequently a difference of opinion came about as to
hat was included under the term “contracts” which could be con-
ad: by declaration. I think California held that oral contracts weye:
included, though it was intended by the draftsman to include all
i;ts; It was perhaps a slip in drafting or mistake in interpreta-
At any rate the more recent of the acts, as in Idaho, make spe-
iclusion of oral contracts. I think Oregon has amended its act
tide- 2 specific reference, and to include all contracts.

CTHOMAS: Must you have a set of facts?

ROFESSOR. HOPKINS: The act does not contemplate solving
‘Yuestions of law. Probably its greatest usefulness will be found
‘test’ cases where the facts can be stipulated. The act can be
owever, with propriety and advantage in having declared a fact
of facty where a series of rights will depend upon it. The act
:p‘rgvides judicial proecedure for having declared the existence
s_te'nce of facts which are in controversy and which result in
‘ang-ingecurity to legal relations.

-TE_EQMAS: WIill you have a jury to determine that question

ROF. .SSOI_E. HOPEKINS: Of course, the jury trial must be pre-
ed, In-any issue in which there was a right to a jury prior to this
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Act, that must be preserved under the constitution because there has
been no change in the constitution as to the right to a jury trial. I
might add, in the Uniform Act adopted in Idaho, the section which re-
fers to the declaration of facts provides that such an issue may be
tried in the manmer heretofore used in actiom at law and sumits in
equity. That is reughly the wording.

JUSTICE AILSHIE: In other words, the same state of facts in a
real controversy that would entitle you to a jury, would entitle you
to a jury under the declaratory judgment act.

PROFESSOR HOPKINS: That is correct,

MR. GRAHAM: Are there any other guestions? If not, we thank
you most heertily for the paper.

Ts the committee on canvassing returns of the election in the west-
ern division ready to report?

ME. THOMAN: Myr. President, the result of the ballot for com-
misgioner of the Tdsho State Bar, Western Division, iz as follows:

Ballots " cast 34
For J. L. Eberle, Boise .icirns 33
For R. B..Scatterday, Caldwell....... 1

MR. GRAHAM: By the vote, J. L. Eberle has been elected as com-
missioner for the western division for the next three years, relieving
me of any further responsibility.

PROFESSOR HOPKINS: There is one thing I overlooked. In
case you have occasion to use the declaratory judgment procedure and
want some sauthorities and cannot find any that give the answer, I
suppose these Canadian and Australian reports are not available in
most of your libraries. Mr. Borchard has made 2 comparative survey
and throughout his book has included citations of all these British and
Canadian. cases. Probably that book will be available and you can get
some reference to those cases,

MR. GRAHAM: On behalf of the Bar, I thank you.

JUDGE KOELSCH: The new book on American Jurisprudence
has a very fine chapter on this subject.

MR. GRAHAM: Anything that anybody may have to say, speak
now or forever hold your peace. Don’t forget the banquet tonight at
seven o’clock, and be on hand to-morrow morning at ten.

(Adjournment.)

MORNING SESSION, SATURDAY, JULY 25, 1936, 10 A. M.

ME. GRAHAM: There is an unfinished matter referred for con-
sideration to Judge Koelsch’s committee and further report, What
suggestions have you to offer?

JUDGE KOELSCH: The committee has not got together to make
the amendment or discuss that or put it in shape. In fact, we will get
together and frame such rules—we are the final authority anyway.

MRE. GRAHAM: I am glad you are exercising the power that is
within you, That being true, we will say that the report of the judi-
cial section has been deferred. Unless the judges get together, we
will bring it up next year.
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‘_.._..;__The next thing on the 'program is & report by Judge Givens on the
“Methodg of Judicial Selection.” Judge Givens.
JUDGE GIVENS: Mr. President, ladies and gentlemen:

COMMITTEE REPORT ON JUDICIAL SELECTION

: Your committee, appointed by President John Graham at the Idaho
State Bar Association Eleventh Annual Meeting, July 11-13, 1935, to
il'n{estigate and make recommendations with regard to the nomina-
hqn, selection, and non-partisan election of judges, consisting of
" Judges C. F. Koelsch and C. J. Taylor of the District Courts, and
“ Judge J, H. Anderson, Marcus J. Ware, Judge James R. Rothwell, and
- J. L., Eberle, members of the Bar, and myself as chairman sh,Jdied
n'umerous gtate laws, and iunumerable law review and bar associa-
fl;llon megazines, a list of which is appended to this report, and a copy
“olf-the notes on the Selection of Judges, being & Brief Outline on the
;Si_elect.ion of Judges as promulgated by the American Bar Association
‘by t;.he Committee on Judicial Selection of the Conference of Bar Asso-
tion Delegates of the American Bar Association, of which organiza-
~Justice James P, Ailshie iz a member,
A.fter some considerable correspondence with each member of the
mmittee, discussing the various views, the chairman of the commit-
senit to‘ each member a list briefly outlining each plan, as get forth
asking the members to mark his choice of the varjous plans.

“QUESTIONNAIRE

. Present Law .o Yes. No.
B. . Nominate and elect as at present but only those

approved by lawyers in secret ballot, Advi-

‘ gory Yes, No,
~C. Nominate and elect as at present but only those

approved by lawyers in gecret ballot, Con-

trollingly restrictive
. Present law, but longer terms . ﬁg
Present law, but no re-election No.

Present law but at bye, i. e, 0dd ¥ judici

- _eleetion only . Yes. No.
G. California System—Running against record, and

if favorable elected. If not faversble may

still run againgt opponents ........coooccvevvennen.. Y No
H. ' Appointment by Governor . YE:: No,
. Appointment by Governor, with approval of the

Benate . Yes, No

Appointment by Covernor, for 2 term of years Y \
I ... Yes. No,
Appointment by Governor for life durins.;; good

behavior Yes. No.
 Appointment by Governor from unlimited Ilist

from entire bar Yes. No.
M. Appointment by Governor from limited list ap-

proved by the Bar Yes, No.

_ this way many of tbe present and proposed systems of Judicial
élaction were eliminated, and resulted in the following brief recom-
idations:

}nember iz in favor of the present law, with longer terms, but
tgd ‘frnm a list of candidates that have been approved by the
#“the state (a ballet having been taken thereom in secret). In
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other words, the recommendation of the bar is to be advisory hut not

controlling, and the electors are not limited to the list submitted by

the Bar, but may approve other candidates.

A second member of the committee recommends and favors our
present system of nomination and election, but the candidates should
be approved by the Bar of the state in a secret ballot, with the view
of having their selection controllingly restrictive and not merely ad-
visory. In other words, no eandidate can be placed on tbe ballots or
certified by the Seeretary of State until he has been recommended by
the State Bar, upon a proper vote of that organization.

Another member of the committee recommends that we keep the
present system of election of Judges, but change the ferms so that
there Tz no re-election, and in this regard; he prefers the California
system, whereby the Judge at the expiration of his term, runs against
his past record only, and is opposed by no candidate, on the theory of
course that the incumbent Judge is fairly entitled to re.election if his
past record withstands the vote of the electors. Then in the event that
he is defeated on this basis, and his record found unfavorable, he is
entitled to run against any other candidates that will be proposed in
a later election.

The fourth member favors our present system, but if any other
plan were to be adopted he favors the California plan as above set
forth.

The other three members of the committee have to date made no
recommendation, so that we may say that there is a majority of the
committee in favor of the present plan, although receptive to a closer
control by the Bar, and with tendencies toward approval of the Cali-
fornia system.

Two members of the committee sent in rather detailed statements
of their personal views critical of the present method and many of
those congidered or suggested, but since they are merely individual
views, though their views were sent to all members of the committee,
but there was no oppoertunity for discussion of them, nor approval or
objection, I have not incorporated any reference to them.
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No. 8, Vol. XVI, April, 1933; No. b, Vol. XIII, February, 1930; No.
4, Vol. XVII, December, 1938; No. 2, Vol. XX, Fehruary, 1934; No,
8, Vol. 18, April, 1935; No. 2, Vol. 19, August, 1936; No. 3, Vol. 19,
October, 1935; Vol. 8, pages 37, 75, 166; Vol. 5, p. 41; Vol. 7, p. 258;
Vol. 8, pp. 48, 258; Vol, 10, pp. 39, 42, 177; Vol. 11, pp. 138, 145,
164; Vol 12, pp. 36, 104, 178, 186; Vol. 13, p. 37; Vol. 15, pp. 21,
88, 46, 139, 149, 150; Vol. 16, pp. 44, 45, 46, 126, 150, 155, 108; Vel.
17, pp. 75, 91.

Report of N. Y, State Bar Ass’'n., Vol. b6 {1933}, pp. 103-285, and 44-
65; The Appointment of Federal District Judges, by Kenneth Sears,
25 IH. L. Rev. 54; Appointment of Federal Judges, by Wm. D.
Mitchell, 17 A. B. A, Journal 569 (1931); Bar’s Duty of Selection
of Judges, by A. V. Cannon, 36. Com. L. Jour. 8 (Jan. 1931); Cali-
fornia or Commonwealth Plan—California State Bar Journal, April
and May, 1932, March, April and May, 1938; Cleveland Bar Asso-
ciation Plan (1927) 21 Il Law Rev. 612 (Feb. 1927); Report of
Committee of Cleveland Bar Association on Method of Selecting
Judges, March, 1983, (Available on Request to the American Bar
Aggociation, 1140 North Dearborn St., Chicago, IIL); Debate on Ju-
dicial Selection, 19 A. B. A, Journal 67 (1938); The Duty of the
Bar in Regard to the Selection of Candidates for Judicial Office,
Henry W. Jessup, 8, N. Y. L. Rev. 54, {1925); The Judicial Office
and the Bar’s Responeibility, by Henry K. Jessup, 13 A.B.A. Journal
177 (1927); Judicial Personnel, by Rodney L. Mott, Spencer D-
Albright, Helen R. Semmerling—Annals of the American Academy
of Political and Social Science, May, 1932, p. 143; Pensions for
Judges, 27 Mich. Law Rev. 134 (Dec. 1928); Problems of Judicial
Selection, 19 A. B. A. Jour. 280 (1933); Selecting Judges, by John
W. Davis, A Radic Address. {Obtained from the University of
Chicago Press, 5750 Ellis Ave., Chicago, Ill.,, by sending 165 centa);
The Selection of Judges, by Martin Conboy, 2 N. ¥. Univ. L. Rev.
27 (1925); Selection of Judges, by D. C. Woods, 19 A, B. A, Journal
187 (1933; Selection, Tenure and Retirement of Judges, hy Evan
H. Haynes, 7 Cal. State Bar Journal 108 (1932); The Selection,
Tenure, Retirement and Compensation of Judges in Ohio, by Fran-
eis R. Aumann, 5 U. Cinn. L. Rev. 408 (1981); Technique of Judi-
cial Appointment, by Harold J, Laski, 24 Mich. L. Rev. 629 (1926);
‘What Aid Can the Bar Render in the Selection of Judges? Luther
Ely Smith, 19 A. B. A. Journal 505 (1932),

JUDGE GIVENS: 1 would like to read the outline of points for and

against the various schemes that were considered, ag promulgated by
e American Bar Association, because I think this heading will per-

Haps aid in such discussion a8 you may desire to give to this matter.

NOTES ON THE SELECTION OF JUDGES,

-(December, 13233. This program, which was adopted by a meeting
te and local bar association officers at Grand Rapids on August
29th and was afterwards approved by the Executive Committee of the
n Bar Association, provides for a unity of work by lawyers’
_ggnizations of the country over on four gubjects in which the bar is
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vitally interested—one of which is The Selection of Judges and Bar
Activities in Connection Therewith.)

A BRIEF DEBATE QUTLINE ON THE SELECTION OF JUDGES.

I. APPOINTMENT BY THE GOVERNOR:
A, Advantages
1, Eliminates necessity of currying favor with public.

. Eliminates politics.

Merit recognized.

. Opinion of bar considered.

. Appointment has worked successfully in Federal Courts.

. Appointment is regular methed of choosing judges in every
other country of the world except Switzerland.

. Only way to atiain recognition of minority groups,

. Bar Associations have more influence over appointment than
over election.

Disaﬂvantageg.

. Could be used to pay political debts.

. Places too much power in hands of Governor,

. Depends too much on ealiber of Governor.

. Tends to make judges autoeratic and overbearing.

. Cloisters judges.

. Inefficient, incompetent or corrupt judges cznnot be reached
except by clumsy and ineffective method of impeachment,

7. Political considerations will control Governor’s choice.

C. Nomination by Special Body.

1. By Judicial Couneil,

2, By council composed of Chief Justice, 4 other judges elected
by the judiciary and 23 attorneys appointed by Governor
(Cleveland Plan).

8. By Chief Justice, Judge of Court of Appeals and State Sena-
tox (Commonwealth Plan).

D. Confirmation.

1. By Senate.

2. By Legislature,

3. By Judicial Council.

4. By Supreme Court.

II. ELECTION OF JUDGES:
A, Advantages.
. Directly responsible to people.
, A constant check on inefficiency,
. A democratic system for a democracy.
. Choice by party leaders has tendency to cause selection of
high grade men.
. Gives bar associations chance to express their opinion.
. Tends to make judges less bigh-handed and despotic.
. Tendency is to re-elect appointed judges.
B. Disadvantages.
1. Produces judge of political rather than legal ability.
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I8 not rea]ly democratic as party bosses, not people, nominate.
3, Canges opinions to be colored by desire for popularity.

s#lnconvenience, expense, and lack of dignity of political cam-
'g‘p cause many good men to decline to seek judieial pre-
erment.
sults in attempts to secure publicity.
uses incumbent to curry favor with politicians,
le cannot inform themselves of qualifications of judieial
idates.
NWEALTH OR CLEVELAND PLAN:

antages.

Combines best features of appointment and election.
rovides for hoth nomination and confirmation (Cleveland}.
poifitments made on merit are subject to check by elec-
Lo,
campaigning or undignified attempt to secure votes.
runs on his record.

ﬁ;i_.eéessary for judge to please public in order to remain

ice;

ination by judicial council is advisory only (Cleveland).
t to many of the objections which can be made hoth

ection and appointment,

'ERENT S0LUTION I8 REQUIRED IN DIFFERENT

opulous cities, ‘
candidates are comparatively nnknown to the voters.
here is little opportunity for voters to discover their real
ualifications. ‘
foting i likely to be purely on party lines.
itical leaders have more power to select unfit candidates,
districts. )
idates are gemerally known to voters.
y to find out about them,
ecessity for men with good record and known ability
selected by party leaders.
GCIATION PRIMARIES:
on of most smitable candidates from each party by
the bar.
. questionnaire indieating opinion of bar as to particu-
qualifications each candidate possesses.
r-simple vote preference,
q: ng pledge to abstain from appearance at politieal
ings.
niring pledge of candidate not to accept campaign con-
ibutions,
ethed of putting results of bar primary before publie,
tiods of working to secure election of eandidates regard-
¥y bar as most fit,
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At the present time in 39 jurisdictions judges of the highest court
are elected by the people and the trial judges are similarly selected,
except in Florida, where they are appeinted. In Rhode Island, South
Carolina, Virginia and Vermont the judges are chosen by the legis-
lature. They are appointed by the Governor and are confirmed by the
Legislature in Connecticut, by a Judicial Council or Governor’s Coun-
¢il in Maine, Massachusetts and New Hampshire, and by the Senate
in Delaware and New Jersey. In the 10 last mentioned states this ap-
plies both to judges of courts of last resort and trial judges, except
that County Court judges are elected in Vermont, and all judges
except justices of the Supreme Court are appointed in Rhode Island.

In New Jersey the Chancellor appoints seven Vice Chancellors to
assist him in handling the work of the Equity Courts and this appoint-
ment does not require any confirmation.

(Published by the Committee on Judicial Selection of the Confer-
ence of Bar Association Delegates of the American Bar Association,
of which Judge James F. Ailshie is a member. Edited by Will Shaf-
roth, Assistant t¢ the President of the American Bar Association,
1140 North Dearborn St., Chicago, Ill.}

ME. GRAHAM: Thank you, Judge. Tt shows comprehensive study
of the different plans and advantages and disadvantages which are
prectically unknown to the members of the Bar, Is there any discussion?
Mr. Glennon, you are down here for discussion of this. I thought
George Donart was to be here, but he isn’t. He is looking after politics.

MR. GLENNON: I rather anticipated that Mr. Donart would open
the discussion and then I could take the opposite side and we could
get an argument started, and that is about all I planned to do. I per-
sonally agree with the report of the committee given by Judge Givens,
as T understand it, that is, the majority of the committee favoring our
present system of selecting judges. Of course, our system of selecting
judges is not a perfect one, and from personal experience I know that
our judges are not 100 per cent perfect, but I think that would be true
under any system that we might adopt. In order to materially change
our system of selecting judges, of course, we would have to have a con-
gtitutional amendment, or maybe two or three of them. I doubt very
much whether the results would justify making a change, and we might
find that they were not as satisfactory as the presemt system, Of
course, we want them as free as possible from partisan politieal activi-

ties, but human nature iz human nature wherever we find it, and the.

man who is not a partisan is a nonentity, as I look at it, so that we
cannot entirely eliminate partisanship from a man’s make-up hecause
we want to make a judge of him. The best we can hope for iz to get
a man, first, sufficiently learned in the law, secondly, who is broad-
minded encugh and independent enocugh that when he goes on the
bench he will decide the case presented to him upon the facts and the
law as he understands it.

I certainly would not be in favor of the appointive system. While
it has its advantages, it certainly has its disadvantages, and I think
its disadvantages would overcome all henefit we might derive from an
appointive system, particularly if we leave it to the Governor to ap-
point with confirmation by the Senate. The Governor is no more eom-
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than the average voter is. As to making a
the members of the Bar Association might
ree, we would have to have a constitutional
any binding effect. I don’t believe that it
it to the members of the Bar to select the
e could ever agree on them, and I fear we

at the members of the Bar should take an
tion of judges, more active than they do.
cannot have a very controlling influence in
his state, if we will do it, if we will he as
endent as we want the judges to be and as
opinions as we want the judges to be.
is frequently asked about the gualifications
e, and we either recommend him or say
he judge to be absolutely fearless and inde-
n independent attitude ourselves, and we
ge to state our convictions and state them
ill have the benefit. If our views are worth
r is entitled to the benefit of them.
articular criticism to make of our present
During the long period of years that I have
ave appeared before a great many different
me Court, and, of course, I have not always
any times has net succeeded in convincing
accepted the results and hoped for better
t time I was luckier and then I felt better
all, my observation is this—I can say this
ow of a single instance in all of the many
where a judge has been influenced by any
r otherwise. I am still convinced that in
1as been wrong, but it might well be that
ace would have been equally wrong in his
‘will be 100 per cent pefect, and I dont
d justify tearing up our present system and
new. The only change that has been made
this state, as I recall, has been the change
n-partisan. As far as I can see, it doesn't
en’t aeen any change in the quality of our
ected on the partisan plan and when they
artisan. Now, I don’t expect everybody to
d, and I hope somehcdy disagrees with it,
r the subject discussed.

. Chairman, and members of the Bar: I
eference to the subject that has been pro-
I have been a member of the Idaho Bar
uring that time I have seen some severe
peted in a good many of them. Daring
engaged in the practice of law and I have
the bench. In my judgment when you
i another, you simply wish that you had the
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other system. It makes very little difference in the result you get.
For illustration, I was elected to the Supreme Court thirty-four years
ago this election upon a political ticket, nominated and elected the
same ns the political officers, and I was elected after one of the most
acrimonious and bitter contests that perhaps has ever been waged for
judicial office in Idaho; not anything personel hetween mysglf_ and my
opponent, but over the now somewhat unknown two-mile limit law. L
had been in the employ of the cattle men and had prosecuted a great
many violators of the two-mile limit law. My oppoment had represent-
ed the sheep men. The question had been up as to whether the two-
mile Hmit law was constitutional or not and the court divided two to
one. The last three or four weeks of the campaign, campaigning for
political offices was forgotten, and the contest was waged over the
election of a Supreme Court justice. I carried eounties that no Tle-
publican had ever carried before and lost some of the strongest Repub-
lican counties in the state to my opponent. When the final result was
counted I was elected. I give you that as a result of the political elee-
tion of the judege.

The last election two years ago is fresb in my memory. I was
elected at that time as a non-partisan on a non-partisan ticket., Now,
from a personal standpeint, if you want to velieve the candidate of
grief and labor, you will take him out of the non-partisan campaign,
He has got to run his own campaign then. He has no committee back
of him; he hasn’t anything back of him; if he wants to maintain an
organization and become ecquainted, he has to do it bimsell. I am
not eriticizing any of the methods, but I am simply suggesting to you
that when you get one you regret that you haven't got the other sys-
tem. None of them are perfect, and in any system you have to get ac-
quainted with the people and you have to wage your campaign, Either
you have to do it or you have to have a committee or organization,
whether it is political or non-partisan, Take into consideration time
expended and expense to get acquainted with the people and run a ¢cam-
paien throughout the State of Idaho and you have a big job ahead
of yon. I think I might be calied Exhibit “A,” a8 a result of all the
different systems. T have been elected under all of them.

MR. GRAHAM: Thank you Judge., I believe the best method of
handling this would be to receive the report and place it on file and
then bave the Bar Commission refer the complete report back to the
locals so that they can study the different plans outlined in the report
and at the next meeting bring it up for discussion again., It is only by
s system of education that we are going to get anywhere in any re-
form that we desire, and I know of no system of getting this back
to the members of the Bar and the laity generally except through
the locals. If there are no objections, I am going to receive the report
and agk the Commissioners to refer it back to the loeals for further
discussion and to keep the subject on the calendar for discussion a
year hence. Tt is a live question.

MR, A. . MORGAN: I think that plan is correct, and I offer this
suggertion to the various members of the locals in conmection with
what Judge Ailshie has told us of the campaign that he made some
thirty years ago. Ordinarily where some question such as the two-
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% is not injected into it, on a political basis, the judges
‘#ecordance with the particular political party in power.
tion in which a Republican candidate was nominated
trpose in the world but to fill the ticket. That candidate
g from e city that was heavily Republican, That can-
0:votes bebind his ticket and defeated Judge Rice, whom
“lawyers loved and respected, by a handsome majority.
td before I bad active charge of my brother’s campaign
agiFinning on the non-partisan basis, and I was anxious to
the:actual results of that election were, as a matter of how
worked. At the same time Judge Steele, who had always
epinbilican, wag running for re-election in the Second Judicial
ithiat time what is now embraced in the Second and Tenth
a1d D, A. Needham was running against him. Burton L.
chigiown: county, Latah County, always led the ticket, and Judge
] fi right along with him, On the non-partisan plan, I
‘both candidates for office of the Supreme Court and
or office of judge in the Second Judicial District
: ine and a fraction per cent. of the votes cast for gov-
it other words, both of them had received less than a majority
togast, - Mr. Glennon said that he finds this system satisfac-
~loses lawsnits occasionally, but he takes it, as he has to, and
that ‘he will have better Iuck next time. The difficulty is that
getting quite tired of relying on luck in these lawsuits; I am
ery Iucky,

MR-PAINE: I don’t wish to discuss the subject, although I have
ohvictions upon it, because it seems to me it iz entirely a waste of
time;-'We have been discussing it all my life, and, peculiarly the law-
ers’of. the nation would not wish to elect the federal judges, and at
ie game time they are opposed to the appointment of the state judges.
“Théré‘isn't any logic in it, but it is a fact.
¥ just arese to say that I want to thank the gentlemen who have
‘come -here and delivered such helpful talks and read such valuable
pajiers-ag the gentleman did yesterday upon declaratory judgments,
fid 6y the committee has done this morning through Judge Givens.
‘We+owe 80 much to them, The rest of us come here to have a good

ime; These other men work hard and give us the benefit of that, I
want to select any one man but T want to say to you that I take
‘this‘opportunity to thank them particularly for their work,

“MR. McCARTY: In my humble opinion the selection of judges on
on-partisan basis is wrong, because I never saw a non-partisen
dge yet.- They are always partisan on one ticket or the other, so
at:unless we could find such an animal as a non-partisan, I think we
ghiould.be back on the old system and let him have hig party appoeint
GRAHAM: The next subject is a continuation of the dis-
n'of the rule making power of the Idaho courts. A year ago
hie read a paper on thé rule making power of the courts,
vear he wae asked to supplement that paper by bringing it
date and making it apply to the Idaho law, to see whether
¢ourts in Idahe cannot exercise the rule making power we
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think they chould have under the present constitution and the legis-
lative system. Judge Ailshie, we will be glad to hear from you now.

JUSTICE AILSHIE: Mr. President: I realize that continued
stories are not generally popular, A vear ago | was requested to pre-
pare a paper on the general subject of the rule making power of the
courts. Now, any of you that were there and heard the paper, or
might have read is in the report of the proceedings, will recall that T
collated some of the authorities and commented on the original power
assumed by the English courts and by the Supreme Court of the United
States when it was organized, and courts subsequent to the organiza-
tion of the government, and pointed out that they had at all times
assumed as a matter of course that they had the power to promul-
gate all the rules of practice and procedure necessary to the privilege
of the courts and the administration of justice. A few weeks ago I
had notice from the Secretary of the State Bar that I had been se-
lected to continue the discussion with reference to the power of the
Ideho courts ander the Idaho constitution. I have not prepared a great
deal on the subject, but I shall give you briefly some of the things I
have found and consider of sufficient importance to elicit your consid-
eration.

A year ago, in addressing this association, I expressed the belief
that we ought to have a set of rules governing the practice in district
courts, uniform throughout the state, subject only to such possible
exceptions as local conditions might demand in minor matters, Where
each district court may adopt an independent set of rules, an adher-
ence to them is difficult for attorneys from other districts and some-
times lends confusion and uncertainty to a record on appeal,

The Supreme Court can not teke judicial notice of a variety of
rules from the various districts of the state. (Powell v. Springston
Lumber C., 12 Ida, 723, 88 Pac. 79; Peters v, Walker, 37 Ida. 195, 215
Pac. 846.) It follows, as a consequence, that where a rule of district
court is involved it must appear in the record properly proven or iden-
tified. .

If we had & uniform set of rules in force throughout the state, that
fact alone would afford a very potent argnment for the Supreme Court
taking judicial notice of them and more potent still if the rules had
the approval of that court.

There are many things which arise in the course of a lawsuit, from
the time the complaint is filed until the judgment becomes final, that
must be done, the procedure for which is not prescribed by statute
and which could not be so prescribed by reason of their unusuzl char-
acter or peculiar application to the facts of the particular case in
hand. If we wish extra time in which to perform an act or desire
an advancement or delay in a hearing, we must present our applica-
tion to the court; and the time and manner of service, and hearing
thereon, are appropriate matters to he prescribed by rules. Sometimes
an extraordinary emergency requires prompt action—that can only be
covered by a general rule.

Much must be left to the discretion of the judge, but there is one
thing that should never he overlooked, and that ig, to always give the
opposing party such notice ag will enable him to be present, or have

IDAHO STATE BAR PROCEEDINGS 63

a representative present, to oppose, if he desires to do 80, any and
every application of every kind or character. Ex parte orders should
always be looked upon with disfavor, except in those cases where the
order or judgment applied for is a matter of right or is no longer open
to opposition.

The general outery that has gone up during recent years, over the
delay of many courts in disposing of cases pending, coupled with the
tremendous increase in crime, bave spurred the courts to an assertion
of their inherent powers to make and adopt rules governing the pro-
cedure and dispatch of business,

The importance of the courts and the har taking positive and defi-
nite action on the subjects of the administration of the law, is made
manifest by the tremendous drift that has taken place toward admin-
istrative bodies and hoards away from the judiciary and into what is
sometimes designated “quasi-fudicial” hodies. In actual practice “quasi”
is a mere weasel word, sapping the vitality from the judicial power,

As I said fo you on a previous occasion, there is little room for
comparison between the dispatch of business in thig country and Eng-
land. This is due to the fact that we dispose of hundreds of cases for
every single case that is tried in England; and, in the second place,
they have only one set of courts and ome judicial system, while we
have 49 independent judieial! systems, with hundreds and hundreds of
cases under each system. It has been said by an eminent American
judge, that:

“No other nation ever had so many kinds and varieties of
courts; courts of general and courts of limited jurisdiction;
courts superior and courts inferior; courts of law and courts of
equity; police courts and justice courts ; civil courts and eriminal
courts, eourts of firgt instance and courts of appeal; state courts
and federal courts; all equipped with judges, clerks, bailiffs,
officers and machinery necessary for their suceessful operation.”

It wounld be strange if the operation of so much judicial machinery
didn’t sometimes become clogged and even have break-downs, Never-
theless, the courts still function with a degree of judicial regularity in
this country.

For gencrations the courts had heen leaving the matter of practice
and procedure to the various legislatures to provide, and, as a conse-

. quence, the courts relaxed and in many cases almost abandomed the

exercise of the rule-making power.

An examination of present-day legal literature discloses the fact
that some of the courts are asserting this inherent rule-making power,
to the extent of ignoring legislation which attempts to regulate the
practice and proceedings of the respective courts.

In the consideration of these powers exerciged by the various courts,
we find that many of them have assumed to exercise what they termed
the commen law right inhering in courts of record to govern and ¢on-
trol their proceedings by their own rules. Some courts, however, have
adverted to the constitutional or statutory provisions of their respec-
tive states: For instance, Missouri, which has gone o long way in the
exereise of the rule-making power and has been widely advertised as
taking an advanced step in this direction, is governed by a comstitu-
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tional provision conferring on the supreme court “general superintend-
ing control over all inferior courts.” (Mo, Const., Art. 6, Sec. 3; N. D,
Const., Sec. 2, Art. 5; Weibel v, Garner [8. Dak.] 28 A, L. R. §0.)

Taking this constitutional provision as meaning what it says, it
seems that the court did not need to rely on any “inherent” power at
all, but has heen granted abundant power, by the Missouri constitution,
to do all the things which it has done, in the way of promulgating rules.

In other states, such as Washington for example, (State ex rel.
Foster, ete., Lumber Co. v. Superior Court, 267 Pac, 770) the legislature
has by general statute conferred on the Supreme Court of the state
plenary power to promulgate rules prescribing the “Practice and pro-
cedure to be used in all suits, actions, appeals and proceedings of what-
ever nature” in the courts of the state. Substantially the same statute
prevails in Colerade, (Kolkman v. People, 300 Pac. 575.)

‘When we come home fo our own state and examine our constitu-
tion on this subject, we find that

“The legislature shall have no power to deprive the judicial
department of any power or jurisdiction which rightly pertains
to it as a co-ordinate department of the government, but the
legislature shall provide a proper system of appeals, and regulate
by law, when neceasary, the methods of proceeding in the exereise
of their powers of all the ecourts below the Supreme Court, so
far as the same may be done without conflict with this consti-
tution.”—-(8eec, 13, Art. b, Const.)

It will be seen that, under our constitution, the legislature is au-
thorized to “regulate by law, when necessary, the methods of pro-
ceeding in the exercise of their powers of ali the courts below the
Supreme Court, so far as the same may be done without conflict with
this constitution.”

This latter clause, authorizing the legislature to “regulate the
methods of proceeding” leaves the subject open to speculation and de-
bate as to just what is intended by “methods of proceeding.”

It is plain, however, from the languape used that “the methods of
proceeding,” which the legislature is authorized to “regulate,” may
not extend to the point where “they conflict with this constitution.”
Now the constitution (Sec. 2, Art. 5) vests the judicial power of the
state in the courts, and provides that

“no persen or collection of persons, charged with the exercise
of powers properly belonging to one of these departments, shall
exercise any powers properly belonging to either of the others,
except as in this constitution expressly directed or permitted.”—
(Sec. 1, Art. 2, Const.)

Ag I pointed out to you, in my address one yepr ago, the rule-
making power has been considered a judicial power from the earliest
history of the English eourts; and it was so recognized on the organ-
ization of our own courts under the federal constitution. ‘

Many courts in recent years have considered this question in de-
termining both the validity of rules hy the courtz and of legislation
authorizing the courts of last resort to make and promulgate general
uniform rules for all the courts of the state. (Kolkman v, People
(Colo.) 300 Pac, 575; People v. Callopy (I[l.) 192 N, E. 634; City of
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Chicago v. Coleman, 254 III. 338; State v, Super. Qourt, 148 Wash. 1,
267 Pac. 770; In re Rules of Court Case, 304 'Wis. 501.)

The exercise of the judicial power of the state means and embraces
8 great deal more than the mere hearing of proofs and deciding a
case. It includes the power and authority over the processes, proceed-
ings and manner of instituting and bringing to issuze the questions to
be heard and a control over the means and instrumentalities employed
in presenting preliminary and ancillary issues and subjects, as well asg
the main issue in the case and final enforcement of the judgment.
These and many similar powers are absolutely essentizl and necessary
to the administration of justice, if the declaration of the constitution
{Sec. 18, Art. 1), that “a speedy remedy shall be afforded for every
injury of person, property or character, and right and justice shall be
administered without sale, denial, delay, or prejudice,” is to be up-
held and constently observed by the courts, This provision of our
constitution follows the declaration of Section 40 of Magna Charta,
which declared:

“Po none will we sell, to none will we deny or delay, right
of justice.”

It ia generally held that a rule once adopted has the force and
effect of a statute, and that it is the duty of the courts to observe and
enforce it. {(California Guleh P, Min. Co. v. Patrick, 37 Ida. 661, at
667; 28 A. L. R., note at 52.) For this reason care must always be
exercised in drafting and adopting rules. A rule which the judge can
set aside at will would be of no use at all.

It seems to me that the most desirable and satisfactory method
we could pursue, in adopting a uniform set of rules for the state of
Idaho, would be to first ask the legislature to pass a general act sub-
stantially to the same effect as the Act of Congress of June 19, 1934,
{U. 8 C. A, Tit. 28, Secs. 723b and 723¢) authorizing the Supreme

“Court of the United States to adopt uniform rales for all federat dis-

trict courts. That act provides:

“That the Supreme Court of the United States shall have
the power to prescribe, by generai rules, for the district courts
of the United States and for the courts of the District of Colum-
bia, the forms of process, writs, pleadings, and motions, and
the practice and procedure in civil actions at law. Said rules
shall neither abridge, enlarge, nor modify the substantive rights
of any litigant.”

Acting upon the authority of this statute the Supreme Court ap-
pointed an Advisory Committee of fourteen practicing lawyers, law
school deans and law schoel instructors, to eollzhorate with the court
in formulating rules to govern the several distriet courts of the Unit-
ed States, to render the practice uniform throughout all the districts.
A third preliminary draft of those rules was publisbed in May of this
year and is now in general circulation among the lawyers of the
country. 4

The enactment of such a state statute in Idaho would remove fromy
the realm of debate and controversy all questions as to conflict be-
tween the inberent power of the courts on the one hand and the au-
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thority of the legislature on the other to prescribe alf necessary rules
of practice and proceedings in the several courts. The adoption of such
a statute might be useful, to the extent that it would eliminate any
possibility of conflict between the legislature and the courts in the ex-
ercigse of this rule-making power, It would disarm any who might
otherwise be disposed to contend that the judiciary does not possess
the powers which I have contended it does possess.

I think such proposal would have greater weight with the judiciary
committees of the legislatures if it could come from the trial judges
of the state acting as a unit or through their committee. The legis-
lature would then realize that the judiciary of the state are in favor
of the proposed act, whereas, if it came from a committee of the bar,
the judiciary committees might hesitate and in the end want to know
what the judges thought ahout it. There would he additional advan-
tage in having such a set of rules approved by the supreme court in
this:

That rules could be drafted which would render the presentation
and consideration of appeals much easier and simpler. They could
also provide the manner and method of entering rulings on motions,
and various applications in the trial courts im such a manner as to
meke their reasons and intent plain and avoid the diffieulty which
sometimes occurs in the trial court ruling upon a given proposition
or state of facts, as he understands the matter, and then having the
ease go to the supreme court and there be presented and sometimes
decided on what is in fact an entirely different issue from what the
trial judge thought he had before him. Drafting of such a set of
rules, through the collaboration of trial judges and practicing lawyers,
would go a long way toward securing general approval of and satis-
faction with such rules, When adopted, lawyers and judges would
study them and apply them in the regular business of the court.

The great importance of exercising care in the drafting of uni-
form rules is emphasized by the caution and deliheration with which
the Supreme Court of the United States and its Advisory Committee
have moved since the adoption of the Aect of Congress of June 19,
1934.

The draft of rules published and cireulated in May of this year
is the third draft prepared by the Advisory Committee and submitted
to the eourt; and they have not yet been finally approved and adopted.
I think this should not be considered as a matter of delay but ratber
ag an evidence of the importance these men attach to drafting a set of
rules, and the deliberation and care they are giving the matter.

No matter what arguments may he advanced concerning the courts,
it still remaing a fact that the constitetion vests them with the entire
judicial power of the state and they are accordingly charged with the
obligation of discharging that duty. Power carries with it responsibil-
ity. The responsibility resting on the courts ean not be shared with
either of the other branches of government—it is an independent, in-
separable and non-delegable responsibility.

It ig the function of the court, and it was evidently so intended, to
exercise the supreme judicial power of government and to determine
the eonstitutional Iimits thereof and to say to each department: “You
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go thus far and no farther.” If the court does not possess this power
then there is no longer in fact three separate departments of govern-
ment. If the supreme court is not the paramount judicial tribunal and
final arbiter of all constitutional questions, then we had as well wipe
out the court. Whenever that power is abandoned, democracy will be
at an end and the liberty and independence of the citizen, his personal
and property rights will no longer be a reality but a mere evanescent
dream.

I remember several years ago hearing the first Chief Justice of the
German Republic deliver an address in which he discussed the judicial
powers of the New Republic and he stated either that at the time of
his appointment or after his appointment he was called in conference
by the Predident and his advisors, at which time the judicial powers
of their supreme court were discussed and considered. And he said
that he told the President that, in his opinion, the only safe wny to
maintain republican institutions would be to have a judiciary like that
of the United States, with an independent supreme judiciary; and he
further told them tbat, so long as he was chief justice, that was the
power he proposed the court should exercise, They remonstrated with
him and he thereafter resigned. Time has demonstrated the wisdom
of his adviee and the unwisdom of a servile judiciary. Personal liberty
and property rights are no longer protected in that country by judicial
decrees. They are dependent solely upon arbitrary executive orders.

Let us hope thbat we may continue to live under a virile and pro-
tecting constitution, where an independent judiciary, supreme in the
exercise of judicial functions, may uphold the splendid traditions of
the past and achieve for our country a still more brilliant record in
the future.

MR, GRAHAM: I must confess the Judge’s paper corresponds to
my own idea. Are there any remarks or any suggestions? The able

_ discussion which has been given by Judge Ailshie leads me to believe
that there iy nothing to do now except to appoint a committee for the

purpose of having this matter presented to the next session of the
legislature.

MR. PAINE: May I make a suggestion on that point? Judge
Ailshie has said that that committee should consist of the representa-
tives of the judicial section, that if the legislature iz asked to pass
this act by the trial judges of the state, they are more liable to grant

.the request than if the request should come from the members of the

bar. My own thought is that the legislature would be more inclined
to pass the act if the request came from both the judicial section and
the members of the Bar, and I suggest to the president that he ap-
point on that committee representatives of both members of the bench
and Bar. The lawyers that are in the legislature when this bill comes
before them, some of them will stop and wonder perhaps just what it
would mean if the courts assume the right, I agree with everything
that Judge Ailghie said. T think the power is there, and I think it
should be exercised, but I would think that the members of the legis-
lature would be impressed by the fact that we both joined in asking
that this be done, and I do it knowing that the members of the court
end I would be in confiict as to the form some of these rules should
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take and I am going to fight it out with them. I am going to call the
attention of the members of the Bar to the fact when I think that the
court has made 2 rule which makes is unnecessarily bard and difficult
for us to have to come before it. I do not fear but that in the end
right will prevail, but that, for the reasons cited, T suggest that your
committee represent both members of the bench and Bar,

MR. HAWLEY: I would second that suggestion, As a practical
matter, I think that the power of the Bar ought to be combined with
the dignity and power of the judges in going before the legislature, I
doubt if the judges would be as suecessful in contacting the legislature
as would be members of the Bar, So far as giving the Supreme Court
the powers concerned, that is where it is apparently, and it should be
recognized, and I have no doubt that when the Supreme Court begins to
make the rules that it will probably appoint sub-committees in various
sections of the state to assist it and advise it.

MR. GRAHAM: Are there any other remarks? The seeond step
will be tbe drafting of the rules, and that will be left to the members
of the Supreme Court and the Supreme Court will adopt such plan,
possibly similar to the federal plan, of calling to their assistance
lawyers all over the state and asking their opinions, In the abaence
of any other suggestion of the members of the Bar, I am going to
appoint on that committee, for the purpose of drafting legislation,
Karl Paine, Jess Hawley and Hugh A. Baker as a lay committee, with
full power to call to their assistance any member of the Supreme
Cowrt or the Digtrict Courts that they mey deem necessary. In-other
words, your committee will have full power to enlarge the size of your
committee for the purpose of drafting legislation and determining the
manner and method of presenting it to the next session of the legis-
lature to carry into execution the idea in Judge Ailshie’s paper.

MR. A. L. MORGAN: It was his belief that the matter should be
presented to the legislature by a committee of judges.

MR. GRAHAM: I did not intend to limit it to that extent. I am
inclined to believe that a combination of the Bar with the judges
might strengthen it, but I am leaving it to this commitiee to determine
the manner and method of presenting it. If they finally come to the
conclusion that it would gain advantage to have the judicial commit-
tee only present it, then they may do so, but I am leaving the aubject
open so that this committee itself may use its best judgment and after
deep thought and research proceed along the strongest line. Are there
any further suggestions?

I wish to thank Judge Aishie most heartily personally and on behalf
of the members of the Bar Commission for the able paper that he has
presented. These papers zll take time. Don’t forget. A member of the
Bar or judiciary cannot prepare a paper of that kind without giving
time and attention to it, and when he does, consideration ought to he
given to it by the members of the Bar. If there are no furtber sug-
gestions on that subject, we will proceed along with the list. “How
the Cost of Litigation may be Reduced,” A. F. James. This matter

was referred to Mr. James by reason of the fact that a vear ago he
gave a short talk on it. We asked him to put his thoughts in concrete
form, and he has failed to do so and is not here, I am going to make
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a suggestion myself. A few years ago at the time we revised the
statutes the filing fee in the district court was increased from $10.t0
$12 for the filing of the complaint, and the filing of the answer was in-
creased from $3 to $5. I think that has served its usefulness and that
those fees should be reduced to where they were hefore, that is, 310
for filing the complaint and §3 for filing the answer, and 1 would sug-
gest that this be referred to the legislative committee.

MR. WARE: There was considerable discussion at Lewiston at
our district meeting, and it was thought that the cost of filing a com-
plaint should be reduced to $10 and that the cost of filing the 